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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

| am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group had experienced a challenging 12 months
in FY2017 with China’s economy expanded only by
6.9% which is slightly higher than the lowest growth rate
experienced in 2016. Policy makers had imposed stringent
regulations towards curbing financial risk from excessive
debt growth. As a result a significant slowdown in credit
growth is achieved in 2017 however the current outlook
is a slowing property market and tighter controls on local
government infrastructure spending is expected to drag on
the economy going forward.

The regulations for China’s outbound M&A activity has
been stringently increased in 2017. Outbound investment
regulations have recently been issued by the State Council
of China which provided guidelines for ‘encouraged’,
‘restricted’ and ‘prohibited’ outbound investments.
The ‘encouraged’ sectors include Belt & Road related
infrastructure, industrial upgrades, agriculture and
qualifying financial institutions that intend to establish
service networks abroad. This also includes investments
that facilitate the export of China’s production capacity,
equipment and technical standards in cooperation
with overseas high-tech and advanced manufacturing
companies. ‘Restricted’ sectors include real estate, hotels,
film studios, entertainment, sports clubs and investments
that do not meet the environmental protection, energy
consumption and safety standards of the recipient country.
‘Prohibited’ sectors include investments involving military
technology, gambling and lewd industries and those that
may compromise China’s national interests and national
security. China’s outbound M&A activity is expected to
grow in the longer term, in particular in the ‘encouraged’
sectors.

Facing the challenging outlook for the ongoing Chinese and
global economic growth, the Group will continue to exert
rigorous control over its business operations and strategies.
The Board’s responsibility remains to produce and deliver
sustainable value to shareholders, as it guides the Group
through these challenging market conditions.
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During the past year, there was a decrease in the
turnover of the group for from HK$30,621,000 of 2016 to
HK$22,050,000 of 2017 and the loss for the year increased
from approximate HK$2,587,000 of 2016 to approximate
HK$41,100,000 of 2017. The loss is attributable to the
slowdown of the Group’s business of corporate consulting
and management services in the financial services sector
due to the restrictive China regulatory environment and the
impairment of goodwill which amounted to approximately
HK$48,737,000.

For the year under review the Company has been focused
on actively developing and expanding businesses in the
corporate consulting and management services in the
financial services sector for both onshore and offshore.

With China’s stringent regulations towards the outbound
RMB activities and Private Equity business during the past
year, it has slowed the Group’s service of the onshore
financial advisory services for overseas investments. The
Board views that for the short term we would be operating
in the similar challenging regulatory environment, however
China’s outbound M&A activity is expected to grow in the
longer term with the easing of the regulations.

The Group had positioned itself to partner up with a
strategic investor and in the first quarter of 2017 made a
minority investment into a Singapore exempt real estate
income management company. The invested company is
a real estate manager, whose business includes wholesale
property funds to sophisticated investors, targeted primarily
in selected commercial and residential sectors in Europe
and Asia. This complements our partnership for offshore
investment structure, which commenced in 2016, but
due to change of the regulatory control, has been slow in
fruition.

As announced on 8 November 2017, the Company has
made an acquisition of a traditional media content and
internet content production management company. The
Management considers that the acquisition will diversify
the Group’s business management services to penetrate
into the traditional media and the rapidly growing internet
media industry, which will broaden the revenue sources
of the Group. The Group had previous business operating
experience in the associated internet media industry,
namely internet protocol television sector.
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

The Directors also believe that the acquisition would further
strengthen and complement the Group’s core business of
business management and consultancy services in light of
the growing of the private equity markets that focus on the
digital internet content sector in the PRC. In addition, there
is a growing trend for the general partners of private equity
funds to provide a more comprehensive advice. Through
the acquisition and with the existing operating know how of
the Group in the internet media industry, the Directors are
of the view that the Group would gain additional exposure
to such industry and strengthen the Group’s managing
service solutions to its existing and potential clients.

In general the Group also concentrated on capital
management for our clients usually through a management
of partnership structures; which encompasses structuring
and optimizing of assets. The Group provides both short
term and long term approach in aligning client needs with
collective expertise and dedicated resources. Management
has been focused the partnership structures where the
Group or its subsidiary takes on a general partner role
which provides the Group’s shareholders an opportunity to
gain exposure to the management fees and carried interest
earned by providing management of the partnership. One of
the partnership that the Group is managing is concentrated
on investing into sustainable agriculture, more specifically
the growing and management of the chinese herbal
medicine plantation and its socially responsible international
distribution of its products. One of the products which
the Group will be actively concentrating on is the herbal
medicine called artemisinin. Artemisinin are a group of
drugs used against malaria. It was discovered in 1972 by
Tu Youyou, a Chinese scientist, who was awarded the 2015
Nobel Prize in Medicine for her discovery.

The Group will continue to adopt prudent and flexible
business strategies and adjust to market and environmental
changes accordingly in the expansion of its customer
base and business. The Group will also continue to further
improve its operating cost efficiency and effectiveness by
optimisation of system and staff resources, streamlining the
support services and making use of synergies with business
partners.
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In addition, apart from the aforementioned operations,
the Group continues to research, develop and explore
investment opportunities which are strategic to its business
operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of the Company’s shareholders.

Together with the experiences of the Board, the Group
has the leadership and track record to achieve and create
operational added value as well as sustainable value for the
financial management services.

On behalf of the Board, we would also like to take this
opportunity to thank the Group’s clients, suppliers,
vendors, banks, business partners, consultants and
shareholders for their support and trust generously given
to the Group. The Board also expresses gratitude to the
management and staff for their work and dedication during
the past years.

Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and loss attributable to shareholders

The total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$22,050,000 (2016:
HK$30,621,000) which decreased by approximately 28%
as compared to that of the previous financial year.

The decrease in total revenue is attributed to the decrease
of the management services provided. The audited
consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$41,100,000 as compared with the
loss of corresponding period last year of HK$2,587,000.
The increase was mainly attributed to impairment for
the Groups Goodwill of approximately HK$48,737,000,
as reported in note 14 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$1,224,000 (2016:
HK$1,039,000) which was increased by approximately 18%
as compared to that of the same period of last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
borrowing consists of amounts due to associates of
HK$980,000, an amount due to the Company’s substantial
shareholder of HK$24,544,000, an amount due to a
director of HK$3,404,000, and obligations under finance
lease of HK$825,000. The Group had a cash balance of
approximately HK$11,486,000 (2016: HK$5,597,000).

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy
to maintain its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars,
or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries,
maintaining a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks.

The issued share capital of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 was HK$176,182,556, which was the
same with end of December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of
the Group, expressed as a percentage of net debt divided
by the total capital plus net debt, was 83.84% (2016:
68.31%).

Employee and remuneration policies

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
employed a total of 41 employees (as at 31 December
2016: 9), of which 3 were located in Hong Kong, 37
were located in the PRC and the remaining 1 in USA.
The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practices and formulated on the basis of
performance and experience of the employees. The salary
and related benefits of the employees are rewarded on a
performance related basis and the general remuneration
structure of the Group is subject to review annually.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies

Deregistration and winding-up of various subsidiaries
in the Group

The Board has resolved that, in order to reduce the
operating costs of the Group, those subsidiaries within
the Group which no longer add value to, nor generate any
income attributable to the Group, should be deregistered,
or voluntarily wound up.

The subsidiary which is currently in the deregistration
process is: Sinobase Asia Limited.

Those subsidiaries which are currently being voluntarily
wound up are: Asian Information Investment Consulting
Limited, BuyCollection.com Limited, and Myhome Network
Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR DT

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Company has been
focused on actively developing and expanding businesses
in the management services in the financial services sector
for both onshore and offshore. Via the revenue generated
by the services provided and other assets from the group
it has sufficient cashflow generated to operate its business
as a going concern. The Company does not have any
financial difficulties to an extent that may seriously impair
the Company’s ability to continue its business.

The Board, looking forward, views that by concentrating
on providing our services and expanding on its financial
services will enhance the company’s incremental business
and the future value of the company.

MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Board is pleased to report that it had positioned itself to
partner up with a strategic investor and in the first quarter of
2017 made a minority investment into a Singapore exempt
real estate income management company. The invested
company is a real estate manager, whose business
includes wholesale property funds to sophisticated
investors, targeted primarily in selected commercial and
residential sectors in Europe and Asia. This complements
our partnership for offshore investment structure, which
commenced in 2016, but due to change of the regulatory
control, has been slow in fruition.

For the year under review the Company has been focused
on actively developing and expanding businesses in the
corporate consulting and management services in the
financial services sector for both onshore and offshore.

With China’s stringent regulations towards the outbound
RMB activities and Private Equity business during the past
year, it has slowed the Group’s service of the onshore
financial advisory services for overseas investments. The
Board views that for the short term we would be operating
in the similar challenging regulatory environment, however
China’s outbound M&A activity is expected to grow in the
longer term with the easing of the regulations.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

T EIRR
REEHA - RARIFERERAERDR
ERREFERRBITRNEERY - BE
AEBREREREBEEES 2 B - K
SEBERRZBASRERELERET
ARBYEAEBREFERARRAFBELEH
KT 2 BB TSR A

RERK EFSRRBEZIRHRBER
BERESRRE  HEANERANRREHEE
RERARRBRREE -

EIRIRTS

EXEMARS  AEERELSERER
BERUBHER YR _FT—tFF—F
PERBRE-HEH MR ERCEHERAE
BAR - ZREHRARREHEETEA -
HEXBBRRAERREEREMEES - B
BIEABNETSMNNEERREREER
Al o LHRBMAN T - RERBMFERER
BREROBHER EBEZEHTENE(CER
ERERRE -

REBFA  NRARFINEEHMERAR
EEEBEFERRBTENCEZARER
AR5 S5

TEREFBEBRERIAREEZDRLEE
B iEe T AREE S EIMNENERMS
BERE EFER 5 RATEHAER

MUEKEMEMREREREE - AW - &
WP ERIHE A REGREREREM

BRI -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As announced on 8 November 2017, the Company has
made an acquisition of a traditional media content and
internet content production management company. The
Management considers that the acquisition will diversify
the Group’s business management services to penetrate
into the traditional media and the rapidly growing internet
media industry, which will broaden the revenue sources
of the Group. The Group had previous business operating
experience in the associated internet media industry,
namely internet protocol television sector.

The Directors also believe that the acquisition would further
strengthen and complement the Group’s core business of
business management and consultancy services in light of
the growing of the private equity markets that focus on the
digital internet content sector in the PRC. In addition, there
is a growing trend for the general partners of private equity
funds to provide a more comprehensive advice. Through
the acquisition and with the existing operating know how of
the Group in the internet media industry, the Directors are
of the view that the Group would gain additional exposure
to such industry and strengthen the Group’s managing
service solutions to its existing and potential clients.

In general the Group also concentrated on capital
management for our clients usually through a management
of partnership structures; which encompasses structuring
and optimizing of assets. The Group provides both short
term and long term approach in aligning client needs with
collective expertise and dedicated resources. Management
has been focused the partnership structures where the
Group or its subsidiary takes on a general partner role
which provides the Group’s shareholders an opportunity to
gain exposure to the management fees and carried interest
earned by providing management of the partnership. One of
the partnership that the Group is managing is concentrated
on investing into sustainable agriculture, more specifically
the growing and management of the chinese herbal
medicine plantation and its socially responsible international
distribution of its products. One of the products which
the Group will be actively concentrating on is the herbal
medicine called artemisinin. Artemisinin are a group of
drugs used against malaria. It was discovered in 1972 by
Tu Youyou, a Chinese scientist, who was awarded the 2015
Nobel Prize in Medicine for her discovery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR DT

The Group will continue to adopt prudent and flexible
business strategies and adjust to market and environmental
changes accordingly in the expansion of its customer
base and business. The Group will also continue to further
improve its operating cost efficiency and effectiveness by
optimisation of system and staff resources, streamlining the
support services and making use of synergies with business
partners.

Furthermore, apart from the aforementioned operations,
the Group continues to research, develop and explore
investment opportunities which are strategic to its business
operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of the Company’s shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xie Xuan

Chairman

Mr. Xie, aged 48, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. Before
joining the Group he has over 19 years of successful
investment and management experience in the areas of
property and logistics in the People’s Republic of China. He
graduated from Jinan University, the PRC with a degree in
International Economics.

Mr. Qiu Yue

Mr. Qiu, aged 48, joined the Group in October 2008. Mr.
Qiu graduated from Zhongshan University, the People’s
Republic of China in 1991, with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
Mr. Qiu has worked in the advertising business for more
than 12 years and was the general manager of Guangzhou
Wavecom Communication and Advertising Limited from
1992 to 2006.

Dr. Feng Ke

Dr. Feng, aged 46, joined the Group in October 2008. Dr.
Feng holds a Ph.D. in Economics from Peking University,
People’s Republic of China. He is currently the deputy
director of Peking University’s Center for Financial
Innovation and Development. Dr. Feng is an independent
director of China Great Wall Technology Group Co., Ltd.
(listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
00066). He currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of China Huirong Financial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 01290) and Zhuguang Holdings Group
Company Limited (stock code: 01176).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EEREREBAEBBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 72, holds a Master degree in Economics. He
is currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar
at a number of colleges and universities in the PRC and
abroad. He has published more than 262 papers and 18
books in the areas of economics, finance and management.

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Mr. Zheng, aged 59, was graduated from the Department
of Economic of Renmin University of China with a Master
Degree in 1987. Currently Mr. Zheng is a researcher of
the Institute of Economics of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences and a doctoral student supervisor of
the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr. Zheng’s field of research mainly covers the
areas in respect of microeconomics, comparative study
of corporate system, theory of corporate governance,
and revolution of state enterprises. Meanwhile, Mr. Zheng
is currently the Executive Vice-Editor-in-Chief and the
director of editorial office of Economic Research Journal
(“CALEIEFT)”), which is a leading PRC journal in economic
theory research published by the Institute of Economics of
Chinese Academy of Social Science.

Dr. Wang Yi

Dr. Wang Yi (£ %), male, was born in 1970 in Xinyang City,
Henan Province. He serves as an associate professor,
associate editor and tutor of Master’s degree students
for Beijing Technology and Business University, and the
director of Journal of Beijing Technology and Business
University (Social Sciences). Dr. Wang graduated from
Department of Economics and Business Administration,
Beijing Normal University with a doctoral degree in
Management in 2009; obtained a master’s degree
in Economics from the School of Economics and
Management of Beijing Institute of Technology in 2004
and a Bachelor’s degree in business management from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in 1995.
His main research areas include business management,
Labour Economics, Economics of Education. Dr. Wang
currently serves as a member of council of China Labour
Economics Association (FBl& &4 EEE) China of
Education Association (PR B & EZEE) and China’s
Disabled Persons’ Federation, respectively. He also holds
five national-and provincial/ministry-level projects and has
published about 20 papers in CSSCI academic journals.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ying Yuk Sim

(appointed on 03/04/2017)

Ms. Ying has over 20 years of experience in accounting,
financial control, corporate finance and personal financial
planning. She had previously served in a number of
Hong Kong listed companies and private companies with
investment in China, in the fields of banking, construction,
trading and manufacturing, property management and
insurance company. Ms. Ying holds a Master Degree
in Business Administration from Manchester Business
School, University of Manchester. In addition, she is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond

(resigned on 03/04/2017)

Mr. Lo was born in September 1953 in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lo is a Chartered Accountant in England & Wales and
a Canadian Chartered Professional Accountant (FCA),
member of International Bar Association (IBA), member
of Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb.). Mr. Lo had
worked with Peat Marwick and also PriceWaterhouse of
Canada as Principal.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Kong Yeuk Hon, John

Mr. Kong, born in 1959 Hong Kong, joined the Group
in October 2005. Mr. Kong holds a Master of Science
Degree in Applied Accounting and Finance from the Baptist
University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Kong has over 12 years of experience in commercial
accounting field.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue and loss before taxation for
the year ended 31 December 2017 by principal activities is
as follows:

ARREE([EF D EUHERE
ARARBRACEBE_T—+
=t BLEFEZEEZMB®RE -

EERE
F+=A

&
=
+

REBEXBRBEISZ2EEST

ARRAIZEBEHRREER - BHAKE
RAIEBEBZABING AR BTRE
MaE38 - "EBEBRE_FT—LtF+ = A
ST -BLEFERETEERE D 2 W k&R
BAEEIFT

Loss
before
Revenue taxation
Wz BRI ESIR
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
By Principal activities: BREZEBED
Management and I8 N B R IS LA
consultancy service income 21,067 (30,567)
Media finances KA 983 591

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and loss before taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2017 by geographical
areas is as follows:

AEEBE_FT—tF+_A=1+—HLF
EizEmel D 2 W RERATBEA T T -

Loss
before
Revenue taxation
Wz RrBiaiRsE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

By geographical areas =il 5
PRC H 21,067 (61,794)
HK & & 983 14,073
22,050 (87,721)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The loss for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the financial position of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
57 to 148 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 144.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Based on information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this
annual report, the Directors can confirm that at least 25%
of the Company’s total listed issued share capital has at all
times been held by the public, as required by Rule 11.23 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year is set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2016: Nil) in
accordance with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)
Mr. Qiu Yue

Dr. Feng Ke

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Dr. Wang Yi

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 86(3) of the articles
of association of the Company Mr. Wu Jixue and Mr.
Zheng Hongliang shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors to be proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has an unexpired service contract that is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensations.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, none of the directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or subsisted during
the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(A) Interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations
As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares,
or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, (“SFO”)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

(i) Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HKS$0.10 each (the “Shares”) of the Company

() RELGEREEA10ETZLEE
BTG 1)ZIFE

Number of issued Shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FRERTRHNE - S RERKE

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued Shares
as at 31 December
Through 2017
Directly Spouse or Through TN
beneficially  minor children controlled Beneficiary —3-tf
owned BiBEEY corporation of a trust Total +ZA=+-HZ
ERELRE FREYE  EETHER fERERHA @t ERARHENM
Directors EZ
M. Xie Xuan HELE - - 518,014,782 - 518,014,782 29.40%
(Note 1)
(1)
Mr. Qiu Yue il 15,430,000 - 18,620,436 - 34,060,436 1.93%
(Note 2)
E#)

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour House BizE1 : 3% X ¥ % B A Glamour
Limited, which is accustomed to acting in House Limited * % & 7] 18
accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s instructions MIREME-EFHELE
who is its sole director, which is the beneficial & R11%E - I % A Asian
owner as to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics Dynamics International
International Limited. Limited 2 67.18% 2 & % &

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace Mizk2 © 3% X %% E A Lucky Peace
Limited, which is incorporated in Samoa, and Limited + 2 B EE 25 5% it 5C
which is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yue. Vo BHBMEEREMA

100% °
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December B EXFTIEEN  RZE—EF+=

2017, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including any interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(B)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Interests and short positions of the Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have, an interest or short position in the

Shares and

underlying Shares which would fall to

be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, were as

follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares

(B)

EEERE

ERRFENRAATZIRHG - HEARG R
EHZEERXA

RZE—+F+=_A=+—80 ' BAEARQ
RAIESRITHAHEA LW TALZ(R
NAEIEBRITEABEBRIN) Rk &8
BT ESR R AEEEERR
BES M EEEHEXVERE2 K35 E8E
MARNEHEE 2 EmIABAT ¢

() RRHZHFE

Percentage of

the Company’s

issued Shares

as at

31 December 2017

1545 AF

Number of R-F—t&

Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares +Z-H=+-H2

RREH St BHBE ERTRHENL

Glamour House Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 518,014,782 29.40%
(Note 1)

—RAX AR R (1)

Asian Dynamics International Limited  Beneficial owner 517,896,132 29.39%
BRBEBA

Century Field Limited Beneficial owner 276,306,666 15.68%
BaBAA

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Asian Dynamics skl 2% X & & A Asian

International Limited, which is beneficially
owned as to 67.18% by Glamour House
Limited.

Dynamics International
Limited * A Glamour House
Limited Bz #567.18% °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

(i) Long Positions in the Underlying Shares

Nil

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December
2017, the Directors of the Company were not
aware of any other person (other than the
Directors and the Supervisors of the Company)
who had an interest and short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the issued share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures in the Company or any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest
in a business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any
conflicts of interest which has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian
Dynamics International Limited, Glamour House Limited
and Mr. Xie Xuan, there was no other person as at 31
December 2017 who was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the shares then in issue of the Company and
who was able, as a practicable matter, to direct or influence
the management of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have
been audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED. CHENG
& CHENG LIMITED retired and offers themselves for re-
appointment as auditor of the Company at the next annual
general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance. The Board
recognises that such commitment is essential in upholding
the accountability and transparency and to achieve a
balance of interests between the shareholders, customers,
creditors, employees as well as other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

To ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules, the Board will continue to monitor and revise
the Company code to bring our corporate governance
practices in line with the changes in the environment and
requirements of the Code. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company has complied with all the provisions of the
Code, for the year ended 31 December 2017, except:

()  under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The Company has
set out in written terms the responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer. At present,
Mr. Xie Xuan, the chairman of the Company, also
undertakes the responsibilities of the chief executive
officer until a replacement for the chief executive
officer is found. The Company considers that under
the supervision of its Board and its Independent Non-
executive Directors, a balancing mechanism exists so
that the interests of the shareholders are adequately
and fairly represented.

(i)  under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term and subject to re-election. None of the
existing Non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the code provision. However, all
the Non-executive Directors of the Company are
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of
dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with all the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on
behalf of the shareholders. The Board is of the view that

it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for the
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests
of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its
duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the
principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of six Directors, with three
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman), Mr.
Qiu Yue and Dr. Feng Ke; and three independent non-
executive Directors namely Mr. Wu Jixue, Mr. Zheng
Hongliang, and Dr. Wang VYi. They are professionals in
different areas and provide independent opinions based on
their expertise.

BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Proposed regular Board meeting dates for a year are
informed to each Director at the beginning of the year.
Formal notice of at least 14 days will be given in respect of
a regular meeting. For special board meeting, reasonable
notice will be given. Directors participated, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication in the
Board meetings. The Board of Directors meets regularly at
least 4 times a year. The Directors participated in person
or through other means of communication. All notices
of board meetings were given to all Directors, who were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis
of major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses,
including relevant rules and regulations. Directors can also
seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. Minutes of
each board meeting will be kept and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director.
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of the legal action against the Directors.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new
directors. The procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of directors are laid down in the
Company’s Articles of Association. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything
herein, the chairman of the Board shall not, whilst holding
such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number of Directors
to retire in each year. Accordingly, as at the date of this
report, Mr. Xie Xuan, being the chairman of the Company,
is not subject to retirement by rotation. Other relevant
Articles state that all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by shareholders
at their first annual general meeting after appointment, a
retired Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors
should retire by rotation at least once every three years. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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During the year, 8 Board meetings and 1 annual general
meeting (“AGM”) were held. Details of the attendance of the
Directors are as follows.
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Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual general

Directors EE Directors Committee Committee Committee meeting
55E BNZEE REZEE HWEEE RFEBEXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) AELE(FE) 8/8 N/ATER 1 11 0/
Mr. Qiu Yue ot 8/8 N/ATE A N/ANER N/ATE R 01
Dr. Feng Ke HEHET 8/8 N/ATER N/ARER N/ATER 1/1
Independent Non-Executive BiIEHTEE
Director

Mr. Wu Jixue TH#E%E 4/8 4/5 N/ANER 111 0/1
Mr. Zheng Hongliang ARy e 4/8 3/5 1/1 1/1 0/
Dr. Wang Yi T#E+ 5/8 5/5 1N NATNE R 11
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEEZULBUR

The Board adopts a board diversity policy and discusses
all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue
to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon
the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

EXERMEZTEELEBRUALTRAE
ZBRMAGEZABAIGERR - AR
AMMEEZTGNEZ LM - HE
REREFENRITT EREZTICHEE
B WUEARRZEBER - FIEE
EeREREBNEZTENEZ TENEZ
EREMGSUFHE - REABEBERSZ T
LEE - BRETRRER - Fik - Xk
HEES KBR(EEIEM)  KERA
Hoe RRRERENMEEREABRES
SWRNRERER -

SNEE R BRAT R FFR

27



28

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Besides, Directors
should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors will be arranged and reading materials on relevant
topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
current Directors received the following training with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director
of a listing company in compliance with the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the Year.

Corporate Governance
Updates on Laws,
Rules & Regulations

EEZHERERER

EETRTHBREALAREEZBENURK
RAEIZRT  EBTBRERE  -SEIEE
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N
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Accounting and Financial/
Management or Other
Professional Skills

EEEQFMEH - HA Bt REHEE
RifGlz&HEE HithFEREE
Attended Attended
Read Seminars or Read Seminars or
Materials Briefing Materials Briefings
HEHES HEHAES
Directors EE ELZES R RsEME ERE
Executive Directors BTEE
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) BEs (L) Y/ & N/& \ V4 N/&
Mr. Qiu Yue Bk Y/ % N/ & Y/ & N/&
Dr. Feng Ke BRIEL Y/ R Y/ % Y/ % Y/ %
Independent Non-Executive BAIEBITEE
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue BB E V- N/ & = N/&
Mr. Zheng Hongliang AR Y/ R N/ & Y= \ V=
Dr. Wang Yi T&#Et Y/ & N/ & Y/ R N/&
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision.
However, all the Non-executive Directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent based on the annual
confirmations received.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has been established.
The current chairman of the committee is Mr. Wu Jixue,
an Independent Non-executive Director, and the other
members are Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and Mr. Xie Xuan.

Under the code provision B.1.1, a listed issuer should
establish a remuneration committee with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties. The Company, has established a remuneration
committee as required under the code provision B.1.1.
The role and function of the remuneration committee
includes the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all Executive Directors, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and to make recommendations to
the board regarding the remuneration of Non-Executive
Directors. The remuneration committee should consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, one meeting of the
remuneration committee was held.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
it comprised of namely Mr. Zheng Hongliang, Dr. Wang
Yi and Mr. Xie Xuan. The chairman of the committee is
Mr. Zheng Hongliang, an Independent Non-Executive
director. The committee considers the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship during the year.

The nomination committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board, assessing the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

During the year, the committee considered and resolved
that all the existing Directors shall be recommended to be
retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (subject to the proposed
amendments at the forthcoming annual general meeting),
except Mr. Xie Xuan, the Company Chairman, those who
have served the Company for more than three years will
retire, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Wang
Yi, Chairman of the committee, Mr. Wu Jixue and Mr.
Zheng Hongliang, and has adopted terms of reference
governing the authorities and duties of the audit committee.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee has reviewed
the draft of this Annual report and the audited financial
statements and has provided advice and comments
thereon. During the year under review four meetings of the
audit committee was held. The audit committee has met
with the auditors twice within the year under review.
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AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year under review, CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
have been appointed as the external auditor of the
Company.

The audit committee of the Company is responsible
for considering the appointment of the external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit
functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the total fee
paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the Company’s external auditor is set out
below:
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Audit Service EIZART 808 720

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year, which give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017
and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and are properly
prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties which may affect the Company’s business
or cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements and external auditor’s reporting
responsibilities as set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

On an annual basis the internal control process was
performed periodically, while the Directors have reviewed
and are satisfied with their ability to comply with the
policies installed as part of the Group’s internal control
system, including, in particular, financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
Furthermore, the Directors are satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and
their training programs and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Miss Ying Yuk Sim, maintains a
high standard of corporate governance and has complied
with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review all Constitutional documents
have been filed and updated on the GEM & Company’s
websites.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

According to the GEM Listing Rules, all resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company after each shareholder
meeting.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

PR I
REEIRIR ST - FBS - EERFEER
HAEEZNMELRS  BE(LER)H

B 2E AREEUANERERERE
I 37865 B 38 <7 R R B 4R UK 2 BE 0 RE B
B-BE EEEMUEAKESH MUK
FRIFCETERAEHER BEERK
% MEAREEIRIENEE -

ATHE
NAIMEMEB/NMIRBEKEZ CEER
WiBSFGEM LT AIEES. 150K o

HEEREH
REBEEERN  FEEASGSEXHHEFE
WHEGEM M AR R 4EUEE HT o

R RHER
RRERREDRREN  NRAREMSEXN
EREE(BEERENES) RERASR

E2BLRBR ©

RIBGEMETWRA  RRAE LIREZME
REBEERBUBRREFARR  BRERRZE
RERNEBRRRGHEREEB T RARRA
A8k ETIE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one shareholder of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office.

The Notice (i) must include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules; and (ii) must be signed by the shareholder concerned
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness
to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal
information.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of
election of the Candidate as a director of the Company
without adjourning the general meeting, shareholders
are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the
date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board
of Directors/Company Secretary at the Company’s
head office. For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s)
must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the Company’s head office and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed
as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to
the shareholders and investors in compliance with GEM
Listing Rules and uses a number of formal communications
channels to account to shareholders and investors for the
Company.

These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; (iii) the Company replying to the enquires from
shareholders timely; (iv) updated and key information of
the Company available on website of the Company; (v)
the Company’s website offering communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and investors;
and (vi) the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong
serves the shareholders regarding all share registration
matters. Also, the chairman of the board would attend
the annual general meeting and he would also arrange for
the chairmen of the other committees to attend. In case
of the absence, of the chairman of such committees, he
would invite another member of the committee to attend.
These persons would be available to answer questions
at the annual general meeting. The chairman of the
independent board committee would also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting to approve
a connected transaction or any other transaction that is
subject to requires independent shareholders’ approval.
The external auditor would also be arranged to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Company will keep on reviewing its corporate
governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavour to take the necessary actions to ensure
compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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R HERERRE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG report by the Group highlights its Environmental,
Social, and Governance (the “ESG”) performance, with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as
described in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance
set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This ESG report discusses the Group’s overall performance
in the Environmental and Social of the business operations
in Hong Kong and in the PRC from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017, unless otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
For this ESG report, in order to identify the most significant
aspects for the Group to report on, key stakeholders
including investors, shareholders and employees have been
involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss and
to review areas of attention which will help the business
meet its potential development and be equipped for future
challenges.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via email at info@acrnet.com.hk.

ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES’ SUSTAINABILITY
MISSION

Although the Company’s business model is not
considered to have any major direct impact on carbon
emission, the Company has taken extra effort to
become an environmentally and socially responsible
contributor in today’s society. The Company’s Mission
towards environment, society and governance is to
achieve a coordination and joint development among
the environment, economy and society. It ranges from
helping to shift the investment chain towards responsible,
long-term value creation, such that economic, social
and environmental sustainability are delivered as an
outcome of the investment management process that
the Board undertook, and the various development
initiatives of the Company, including day-to-day corporate
management, business development and product and
service development. In this regard, the Company has also
formulated a relevant environmental, social and governance
policy, which:
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

- adheres and complies to the relevant laws and
regulations of corporate environment, society and
governance for conducting the Group’s businesses;

- continues to improve and enhance the Company’s
relevant management system and policy of
environment, society and governance; and

- encourages and promotes our staff and employees
to save energy and conserve resources, supports
and motivates energy saving and emission reduction
measures (i.e. Paperless Office)

We are also very committed to communicating between
management and staff, in respect of sustainability values,
and such information was extended to stakeholders by way
of ESG report.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Type of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting
period was mainly travel emissions and paper consumption.
Our business does not involve in production-related
pollutions which would result in any direct emission.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION

Scope of Greenhouse
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Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tonnes of CO_e)
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2017 2016 % Changed

—E—tF —TF 3%
Indirect Emission Travel 1.60 tonnes 1.77 tonnes 9.6%
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Travel

The Directors and senior executives have actively
engaged in telephone conference meetings rather than
the traditional face-to-face for all non-essential meetings.
This has decreased the travel for the Board and the
senior executives hence reducing the corresponding
carbon emission produced from the traveling. In 2017 the
corresponding emission resulting from travel was 1.60
tonnes compared to 1.77 tonnes in 2016, a reduction
of 9.60% (the above figures has been computed from
http://calculator.carbonfootprint.com/).

Paper Consumption

The Group continues to practice paper saving initiatives,
such as default double-sided printing, reminder for staff
to have environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and
separated collection of waste paper for effective recycling.
A total of approximate 27,500 sheets of paper were utilized
in 2017 compared to 30,000 sheets in 2016, a reduction of
8.3%.

SOCIAL

Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
and compensation and benefits. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on
the basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour,
sexual orientation, age, marital status, family status,
retirement, disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. The Group also appreciates
the importance of cultural diversity in the development of
the Group, and promotes the employment of employees in
a wide range of ages, genders, and ethnicities.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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Comprehensive and Qualified Training Procedures
Core values are the basis for the training provided by the
Company. While job requirements serves as the theme
and enhancement of job skills serves as the objective for
the overall training. The Company succeeded in designing
targeted training courses facilitating improvement in the
employees’ professional and management quality to
the fullest extent and realizing their growth potentials.
In addition, the Company is qualified to supervise in
the training of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accounts (HKICPA). Furthermore the Company has also
supported and sponsored its employees to obtaining
relevant regulatory certificate for conducting private equity
management in the PRC.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All directors and employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct and Group’s policy
to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group’s Code of Conduct states clearly
that:

- All directors and employees should avoid conflicts of
personal interest and their professional duties;

- A situation in which employees exercise authority,
influence decisions and actions or gain access
to company assets and information through their
employment in the Group to achieve private and
personal gain is strictly prohibited.

- Employees is required to declare any conflict of
interest by completing the required form as instructed
by the Group’s Human Resource Department.

- Neither directors nor employees shall obtain or
provide benefits to customers, contractors, suppliers,
or people with business relationship with the Group.

- Accepting voluntary gifts must be declared and have
undergone the approval process as administered by
the Group’s Human Resource Department.
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R HERERRE

FUTURE DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

The Directors of the Group are currently very well diversified
in respect of both professionally and geographically
to ensure the Group will be prepared for ongoing ESG
compliances. Going forward the Group and its Board
will continue to improve, enhance and promote the ESG
process. The Board and senior executives will continue
to be engaged in ESG training for the improvement of the
Group’s ESG development. More training and development
in terms of raising staff’s awareness on environmental and
social impacts from the business will also be considered.

In addition, during FY2017 the Company sponsored
its advisors to attend courses with application to
“management of sustainable businesses”. With the
emphasis on the management of sustainable businesses,
the advisors has continued to provide advice to the Group
in managing and investing into sustainable agriculture,
more specifically the growing and management of the
chinese herbal medicine plantation and its socially
responsible international distribution of its products. One of
the products which the Group will be actively concentrating
on is the herbal medicine called artemisinin. Artemisinin are
a group of drugs used against malaria. It was discovered in
1972 by Tu Youyou, a Chinese scientist, who was awarded
the 2015 Nobel Prize in Medicine for her discovery.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WO g w M OFE OB O oA R A A
TO THE MEMBERS OF

ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 57 to 143, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis For Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

The auditor’s report of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 contained a qualified opinion in relation to limitation
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to the
carrying amounts of assets classified as held for sale as
at 31 December 2015. The disposal of such assets was
completed on 24 March 2016. Since the carrying amounts
of assets classified as held for sale affect the results and the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016, we were unable
to determine whether adjustments to the results and
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
might be necessary for 2016. Our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was modified accordingly.
Our opinion on the current year’s consolidated financial
statements is also modified because of the possible effect
of this matter on the comparability of the current period’s
figures and the corresponding figures.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of HK$41,100,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 and sustained net current liabilities of HK$86,620,000
at 31 December 2017. These events or conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in Note 3(c), indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. As described in the basis for
qualified opinion section above, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence as to the carrying amounts
of assets, classified as held for sale as at 31 December
2015 and to determine whether adjustments to the results
for 2016 might be necessary. Accordingly, we are unable to
conclude whether or not the other information is materially
misstated with respect to this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

PR EZEIR

Gooawill impairment assessment

AR E A

Refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2HRAMBRRME14 -

Included in goodwill of HK$135,618,000, an
amount of HK$133,278,000 is related to the
Group’s business combination allowing the Group
to pursue its long term business diversification
strategy by entering into the investment
management and consultancy industry. The
Group is required to annually test the amount of
goodwill for impairment.
RETA®EE2135,618,0008 L @ £
133,278,000/ LA ESEENZE E5EEES
EAREEERBERTEMBERRIERZ TLE
BMOEBEH - BEXESFEARBBEZRESH
HEITAIR -

Management has concluded that there is an
impairment of HK$48,737,000 in respect of the
goodwill. This conclusion was based on a value in
use model that required significant management
judgement with respect to the discount rate
and the underlying cash flows, in particular
future revenue growth. Independent external
valuation was obtained to support management’s
estimates.

EEECE T EERMELS, 737,000 7T &Sm0
BREEZMMBEXNERR R (TR R KK RIER)
TTRERERBHENEREERD - BUSEIZINBET
M EXFHEEENTEA -
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AREZEIE(E)

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

BENEZNMNEEERERA

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

HEEERENAIEFEE

- Evaluation of the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

- FHMABMINBEERNEE eI RE
BRE

—  Assessing the valuation methodology;

- FHEEESRE

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge
of the business and industry;

- BEEBRITXRANZERBARRERZ
A

/

—  Reconciling input data to supporting
evidence, such as approved budgets
and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets; and

- BB ABREXER é Bl an &8 8t
WEENERZERERSEIE &

—  Checking the mathematical accuracy
of the cash flow models and agreed
relevant data to the latest forecasts.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter (Cont’d)
BB EZEE(E)

Valuation of contingent consideration payable

FEN AL B 1E

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
HREGRE B mRERMTE21 -

Management has estimated the fair value of
the contingent consideration payable to be
HK$106,141,000 as at 31 May 2017 with a fair value
gain for the year ended 31 December 2017 recorded
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of HK$2,148,000.
Independent external valuation was obtained in
respect of contingent consideration payable to
support management’s estimates.

BEREM RIE—tFRA=+—08 BEN=HA
KREMNATFEE106,141,0008 T BE-T—+F
TZA=T—BIEFEMNRAFERE?2,148,000% T
RN e ER REME KGR - RENKARE
BISB MR EE X EIRERMEET

B ZBERE

AREZEIE(E)

How the matter was addressed
in our audit (Cont’d)
EENEZNNEEEESHEE)

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of contingent consideration payable
included:

HEEERNIARERENEFESE

- Evaluation of the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

- FHMEBINHERNEE - e REE
RE

- Assessing the methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions; and

-  FHMEFRTERIZRRREERE K

- Checking, on a sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.

- HEREMARARRE SR LA -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharge their responsibilities for overseeing the group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBEHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tong Yat Hung
Practising Certificate number P0O1055

29 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Note 2017 2016
Wi —B—tE —TAE
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT
Revenue Wz 5(a) 22,050 30,621
Other revenue and net income/(loss) E fth gz &
WA/ (E18) %58 5(b) 2,192 (3,822)
Administrative and operating TR R B
expenses (60,751) (26,973)
Loss from operations KB ER (36,509) (174)
Finance costs B E KA 7 (1,224) (1,039)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates (LB A T 5,/ (E518) 12 (508)
Loss before taxation BrF AT E1E 8 (37,721) (1,721)
Income tax Frigit 10 (3,379) (866)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR XEFERE (41,100) (2,587)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: H 2 (E#E) WA :
ltems that may be reclassified HgrgeEFofizEaz
subsequently to profit or loss: IHA :
Exchange difference arising on BREBINEEIEEZ
translation of foreign operations PE & =58 (828) (266)
Reclassification adjustments relating &t £ A & G 9N 75
to foreign operation disposed of ZENOEFAE
during the year = 271
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ARNFEEHE 2 mE(E1E),/
for the year, net of tax WA - HIBRTEIE (828) S
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE XEELAEEEHE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (41,928) (2,582)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THANLREIERSTS ¢
— owners of the Company S WNEIEZ =N (40,872) (2,234)
— non-controlling interests — JE AR 25 (228) (353)
(41,100) (2,587)

50 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERAEMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

Note 2017 2016
Wi —B—tE —TAE
HK$’000 HK$’000

F#EIT FET
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TIHALTEEZE
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 51848 -
— owners of the Company S YNEIEZZ =N (41,763) (2,205)
— non-controlling interests — JE AR (165) (377)
(41,928) (2,582)
HK Cents HK Cents
Al Rl
Loss per share: BREE - 12
Basic and diluted EARRES (2.32) (0.13)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these [FEMi 2 fist B R ZEEGE AV BHER 2 — 36
consolidated financial statements. % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R
As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—tF+=-A=+—H

Note 2017 2016
B s —E—tE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BENERE 13 2,795 2,073
Goodwill FEES 14 135,618 182,015
Interests in associates N NI ey 15 5,018 4,996
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 16 769 -
Amount due from an investee company  JEUIR E ¥ R A B FUE 17 109 -
144,309 189,084
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EA R 18 40,350 36,009
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEEY 19 11,486 5,597
51,836 41,606
CURRENT LIABILITIES HEaE
Trade and other payables f’f%&ﬁﬁhfﬁﬁﬁ 20 133,283 21,138
Amounts due to associates N YNGIE S| 15 980 913
Contingent consideration payable Fﬁ‘}z%ﬁ{ﬁ 21 - 108,289
Obligations under finance leases MEHEERM 22 300 300
Tax payable PRI 3,893 558
138,456 131,198
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (86,620) (89,592)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRDHEAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 57,689 99,492
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBERE
Amount due to a director J@H—%%%%’Uﬁ 26 3,404 4173
Amount due to substantial shareholder B F EIRE R 26 24,544 23,350
Obligations under finance leases MEHEET 22 525 825
28,473 28,348
NET ASSETS EEFHE 29,216 71,144
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGEE
Share capital e 23 176,183 176,183
Reserves (X 24 (146,966) (89,369)
Equity attributable to owners of the AR TIHEA AL
Company 29,217 86,814
Non-controlling interests JEIR RS RE RS (1) (15,670)
TOTAL EQUITY R 29,216 71,144
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEW 2 M BN X EHGEAMBHRER 2 — 217D -

consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 29 March 2018.

Xie Xuan
Director

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Qiu Yue
Director

Annual Report 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERRSBERR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHENELE
Issued Non-
share Share  Capital Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
ERfTRE  RiEE EXRE  ERBE  RHBR Nt RS it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
Thn FiEn ThR Thn TiEn TR AR Thn
Asat 1 January 2016 RZB-~"E-A-H 176,183 304,371 26,020 (8,751 (413,804) 89,019 (19,212) 69,807
Loss for the year rEERE = = = = 2234 (223 (383 (2587)
Other comprehensive income H2ERA
Exchange difference arising hERNEBRELL
on tranglation of foreign EiZE
operations - - - (327) - (327) 61 (266)
Reclassification adjustments relating to ~~ SERLEENEH 2
foreign operation disposed of BN ERE
during the year - - - 356 - 356 (85) 211
Total comprehensive loss FEFREFRLE
forthe year - - - 9 P2y .25 B (258
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEAR = = = = = = 3919 3,919
As at 31 December 2016 and R-F-AET-R=1+-BR
at 1 January 2017 —§-t%-f-H 176,183 304,371 26,020 (8,722 (416,038 86,814 (15,670) 71,144
Loss for the year rEERE = = = - (081 (40872 (228)  (41,100)
Other comprehensive loss E2EFE
Exchange difference arising HEENEBRELL
on tranglation of foreign EiZE
operations - - - (891) - (891) 63 (828)
Total comprehensive loss FEFREEREE
forthe year - - - @91 @08T) (41763 (165)  (41,928)
Acquisition of addftional interests WEENB LR BIMER
in subsidiaries - - - - (15,834) (15,834) 15,834 -
As at 31 December 2017 R=B-tE+-R=1-H 176,183 304,371 26,020 (4,613)  (472,744) 29,217 (1) 29,216

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTMER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-ZT—+F+-A=1+—HLFE

Note 2017 2016
fzx Z=F—t&FE =T F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM KETEBHELEZHERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation K F BT Es 18 (37,721) (1,721)
Adjustments for: AT HIEFE -
Share of (profits)/losses of associates D {LEEA AT (C#F)) /8 (12) 508
Fair value changes on contingent B SARERFEE
consideration payable (2,148) 7,336
Interest income B A (15) (20)
Interest expenses FEZH 1,224 1,039
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #% - BKE RREZITE
equipment 698 690
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEHB ARz W - (3,489)
Impairment loss of trade receivables 2 5 fEULIE ZUREE 1B - 1,790
Impairment loss of goodwill REREEE 48,737 13,468
Operation profit before changes in BIEE G EB)FH 8% T
working capital 10,763 19,601
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 N £ th & Y BR Z1 18 A0 (423) (34,063)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 & H fth FE{~ BR ZIE A0 137 8,176
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEEL/ (A Z2H®
operations 10,477 (6,286)
Income tax paid BEEEH (44) (308)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEBEL,(FTA)
operating activities 2R eFEE 10,433 (6,594)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

Note 2017 2016
ez Z—B—t&E —ZT—XF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM BREETHZHERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received B UF B 15 20
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEHB AR RS
interest in subsidiary (Note 30) e FRE (FEE30) (561) -
Purchase of available-for-sale BATHDERE
investments (769) -
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE  BELXRE
equipment (1,185) (41)
Advances to associates Bk NS EEN (10) (
Advances to investee company EESS=EIE UNSIEZE N (109) -
Net cash outflow on disposal of a HEMB AR RSN
subsidiary FRE 31 = (70)
Net cash used in investing activities KWEEETA IR F5 (2,619) (92)
CASH FLOWS FROM REEHZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment to a director BYRTES (769) (1,540)
Advances from associates ol /NETE=E Y 67 413
Proceeds from finance lease MEHERSHIE - 1,500
Finance lease repayment MEREEN (300) (375)
Interest paid 2R E (30) (38)
Net cash used in BE )BTRS HEE
financing activities (1,032) (40)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HERESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 0,/ (g« )% 6,782 (6,726)
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [EZ:##E) 2 B4
RATE CHANGES (893) (130)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REMZHRERRSZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5,597 12,453
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZIEERIEEZEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 11,486 5,597

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

MAGTHMELBRZHIR

TRFANAEERETHMELREZEY
(BRERES MRS E) - MELTHMEL
BEDREREECL(IRKBERERE)
RAKESERERERTOERBRELD
FRELRESREZRE -

Total
Amount  Obligations liabilities
Amounts Amount due to under from
due to due to  substantial finance financing
associates  adirector shareholder leases activities
FEfIEEE Eft—2 ERHEE ME FiEs
ACIENE] EENE RFERIE HEEE BEEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT TAET FAT FAT
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+$—-H—H 913 4,173 23,350 1,125 29,561
Changes from financing cash flows: B&R & REMELE
Repayment to a director BAT—REE = (769) - - (769)
Advances from associates L YNETEE 67 - - - 67
Finance lease payments HERENHK - S - (300) (300)
Interest paid BRI - - S (30) (30)
Total changes from financing HEREREMESL
cash flows 2y 67 (769) - (330) (1,032)
Other changes: Hig#
Interest expenses FIBREE - - 1,194 30 1,224
Total other changes HEthZ8esm - - 1,194 30 1,224
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+F
+=-A=+-H 980 3,404 24,544 825 29,753

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousand
unless otherwise stated.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are investment
holdings, provision of business consultation services,
and private investment fund management services,
and provision of traditional media and internet media
content production management services and media
content design services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
Amendments 2014-2016 Cycle — HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities
HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments
HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Amendments Assets for Unrealised Losses

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs
has no material impact on these consolidated financial
statements, except as described below:

HKAS 7 Amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

ATEH
DMNEE(ER)BRAB(ITARE])
ARHESHEEIMKIZEREBRA
A ERMDESEBERSAERAR
GEM([GEM]J) £ « AR MHEE
NI ELEMB IR ARER QT
BEr—fWE -

HEMBHmMERAETIEG  BTRAR
Bz E® - RIERTHAN - FIE
BEZBEOT -

ARRREMBAR (S [ AEE])Z
TEXGRREER  REXHHEHR
BAMFARERESEEBRE - UNIEE
HEREBNEMEER 2 ATEEE
I RS K R BB MR RR AR TS -

FE R #E] R AEIER] BB MR E
FA(IEFEMBRERA)

RAFEE  AEBERBATHESGA
Mrg((EESFMAS EMLA -
E—tF - A BHZEFAIEZ G5 H
RAEM AT MBI BB REE
U

BEMBREEN BAEMBREEN TN
(fEFTA) FETFRHZF
BRtE-BEBHBREE

BIE12%% - REREME

B Fl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE-_T—+F

2.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

TTA=+—HLEFE

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRSs
Amendments

HKFRSs
Amendments

HKFRS 2
Amendments

HKFRS 4
Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9
Amendments

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15
Amendments

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

HKAS 28
Amendments

HKAS 40
Amendments

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle except for
HKFRS 12!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments!

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarification to HKFRS 15, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'

Leases?
Insurance Contracts?®

Foreign Currency Transaction and
Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Transfer of Investment Property’

Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

& To be determined

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include (a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and (b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to
the Group are:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of the subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at FVTPL is presented
in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate to have
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 in
respect of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale investments. These securities qualified for
designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9.
The Group plans to elect the option for the designation
and will measure these securities at fair value at the
end of subsequent reporting periods with fair value
gain or loss to be recognised as other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve. Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, the fair
value gain or loss related to these available-for-sale
investments will be adjusted to investment revaluation
reserve at 1 January 2018. The other financial assets
and financial liabilities will continue to be measured
on the same bases as are currently measured under
HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the adoption of the expected credit loss model of
HKFRS 9 will have material impact on the opening
retained profits at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Directors anticipates that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on
the amounts of revenue reported as the timing of
revenue recognition may be affected. In addition,
the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

tETA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of other new and revised HKFRSs, certain
of which may be relevant to the Group’s operations
and may give rise to changes in accounting policies,
changes in disclosures and remeasurement of certain
items in the consolidated financial statements. The
Group is not yet to assess their impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs (which
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation) issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value.

(c) Going concern

The Group incurred a loss for the year of
approximately HK$41,100,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2017 and sustained
net current liabilities of approximately
HK$86,620,000 as at 31 December 2017. The
directors of the Company endeavor to improve
the Group’s liquidity position and have taken
measures to reduce overheads and costs to
strengthen its cash flow position. Furthermore,
the directors of the Company are currently
exploring various options in order to provide
additional equity funding to the Group. In
addition, the substantial shareholder has agreed
to provide continuing financial support to the
Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation

In view of the above, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able
to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on the going concern basis.
Should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively; and

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the
Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Business combinations (Cont’d)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when
the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at the date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses.

3.

EX

(f)

(9)

CH

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

ERTBUR ()

[k

WIEESIELRE  TIRWESE
BE R (R EXEFTHER) ZKAR
RETREEE(IA)HIE -

BETAENR  BEEHAES
TEHIC & B 2 B A T A9 25 2 A
SEEERSELBT(RALE
HERIAAR)) o

EokimEsReELBUEESF
HNE B RBRNA B E LA BER
BERERTETRERR - R H
SHHRKEMEL 2 EHE  BD
ERBzREELBUNZBRES
RAGEITRER A - HREELE
fzzam e NEREE A
MERES LD EANRES L E
ZEMEFEEZREE - HRZ
BUASBEEZREE LA
B EWEE - B8 2R
BEBREENBSER - R
ZEEBREBBRTERNERARME
[E]

HERBERSELBURETLE
BRRNEERmBZRIEE2R -

AEBBBERE AR MEERE
ZBREREAN T o

R BATZIRE
AR B A B 2 1B IR PR AN BB (B &S
BRARB]ZMFBIRAKR AT

MWEE(ZER)BRAR R FFR

69



70

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of an
associate used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Appropriate
adjustments are made to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the
Group. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Interests in associates (Cont’d)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Interests in associates (Cont’d)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write off their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Land and building : 2%
20%-33% or over the

remaining lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture and 19%-50%
fixtures

Computer and
equipment

Motor vehicles

19%-33%

20%-33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the
item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE-_T—+F

TTA=+—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

)]

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(k)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

(i)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: “loans
and receivables” and “available-for-sale”
(“AFS”) investments. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables
(including amounts due from subsidiaries
associate, and investee company trade
and other receivables, and cash and bank
balances) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

AFS Investments

AFS investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale
investments or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by
the Group that are classified as AFS
investments and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and
dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of AFS investments
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

AFS Investments (Cont’d)

AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or

° a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the equity investments
below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(k)

(i)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset,
such as trade receivables, are assessed
for impairment on a collective basis
even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass
the credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see the accounting policy below).

Annual Report 2017

3.

EXEHBR(E)
MBTRE)

(k)

(i)

BEEE ()
BB EZ G ()

HETFHHEEEN(WE S
RUER) TS - DEREE
BT ETEARRE - B
2 B O T A o
IR AR 2 BEAE R
5 @5 AR B 2 B AT
% EREREBHTIE
B HR 2 R BB + DA S
WS R A B 2 2 B
AR R -

PLIR B SH PR AR B BR 2 A TS &
EMs  RESEREBRE
EZEREEREREERR
FTEEBRARITIR 2 Bt R
RenBcREZHER
R ERAE REBES
BR D - MmaxE A B8
ERERMESRRELEZS
HERE - BIEAER ZRE
BiEEABRRER - XA
ERBERERHZREE
TRBBELEERRELZ
B TR Z B

IR AFHEZ B EEM
5 OREBRBRZERREE
FREEENEBUMBEE L
BRITMIGEREFR 2 fhE
ARREREREBEZEZRAT
E-BHREBERESTIERN
ERBERL (R TSR
K) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit
or loss. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.

When an AFS investment is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period.

In respect of AFS equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. In respect
of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. BEEXE:BE(E)
(k) Financial instruments (Cont’d) (k) BBIRE)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity (i) BFIBEERREX

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Debt and equity instruments issued by
the Group are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either
financial liabilities at FVTPL or other
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at
FVTPL when the financial liability is either
held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”
permits the entire combined contract
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

EXEHBR(E)
(k) BABIR(E)
(i) FAFEERRF )

ERATFEFAARZHHR
& (1)
ETHIER T HEE BB
BEASMOB TS B &5
NSRS REDT
EEPN

o RZIBTEHBR S RIERE
AlBEE LT E R ER
—EUE =%

s RUMBABEBK—H
MHEEEXMBARE
IMEN D HE
B R R FEIREAR
SEFENRREEN
RERBIZ AT EEE
#EIT - MBERRENE
PR iR % B4 A BB 52
#Hoom

e HBKEAE -HAZHA
BRAXTTELANS
M —8n > MEEER
FTHERIEI95 [H BT
B ERLTEIAG
BN AMHENEERR
NFER AR °

BRAFEFABRSZNMBA
ENRFEE  BEFTE
PTEANEMKELBEER
BmER - ERATERN
W s B RFE AN
BEXHEMFE -

SNEE R BRAT R FFR

81



82

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade
and other payables, and amounts due to
subsidiaries, associates, a director and
substantial shareholder, and obligations
under finance leases) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would not be material, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible notes (Cont’d)

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount
of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in
equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred
to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity
date of the convertible notes, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred
to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the convertible notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own
equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred assets, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

U]

(m)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(iii) Derecognition (Cont’d)
The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
services provided in the course of the ordinary
activities, net of discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follow:

()  Management and consultancy fee are
recognised whenever the services are
rendered;

(i) Media service income is recognised
whenever the services are rendered; and

(i) Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis
that takes into account the effective yield on
the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(n)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, paid leaves and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Retirement benefits schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
are members of central pension schemes
operated by the local governments in
the PRC and these subsidiaries make
mandatory contributions to these central
pension schemes to fund the employees’
retirement benefits. The retirement
contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries
are based on certain percentages of the
employees’ salaries in accordance with
the relevant regulations in the PRC, and
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits upon payment of
the retirement contributions to the central
pension schemes operated by the local
governments in the PRC.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-A=+—HLEFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. BEXEstBE (&)
(n) Employee benefits (Cont’d) (n) EE\AE)
(iii) Share-based payments (iii) LIBRf13E

The fair value of the share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
included in profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).

BETREZBEREZAYE
ERAREEMA - MEmT
VA BN 3R 16k 4 7 & A B
e RFELERDE A
B WEEBRER G GER
Kt - HEEANERE
REAAEGRTZEEZER
bt KEEBRERR
HARKIR  BREGBTAF
BERBESEFEBHANES A
B o

REBHA  FHRBZE
PRIEE B & T AR - BRIE
RREERAXAEBRERRS
—HEE  MMERAETA

B s - BRI BE
FEAERZRFRAFE

ZERBETE AT FE
2B NEEAH - ®R
B—HEAXZEEE TIAH
B - URREEBRECZE
FRECE (P PARU SRR
HAAEHRE) - ML YIER
RARBEES AR BB T
BEBZEBIRMFRIRI
1 21 SRR O A BR AN SR R 4 Y

R EERBBREETE(CE
BREROEER)BRE
JEm (8 BERBE R ER)
Bk

SNEE R BRAT R FFR

87



88

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE-_T—+F

3.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

TTA=+—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-T—

F+=A=t-

BIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(a)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current tax and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. When
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Annual Report 2017

3.

EXE

(P)

(a)

stBUR (&)
FRig#i (&)
EEVBEERBBRBENRE
HARESEMARBERERM 2R
(RBOE)  REPNEEFERE
EZRPRERCHEAE - BT
MEREREEZFE  RRIZR
AEBERHRE RS RHRE T
BEEIABEREECSAMESL
RIR 5 4R o BUEIRE IR SR B IR
RBEHER - BFRFERNEME
E SRR E RN m RN IA
BRERM(EXBAT  AEHRER
Fkﬁﬁﬁ D Rl E A 2 T R
RAEERERER) - HEHS
HZW&Q&@@EEW%ﬁEﬁ

ELERR - AIRBEETAEHE
Pt
HE

EHEGRBHEBE ZEAID R
BN ERETAEA - MBEESHE
RBEME - MERMAES DA
RIEEHE -

FEEEBABA
REBEHEREZEERHEER
1R 2 AHES (IRIE) &EHEE

REVNTHIABAEEZEE -
HARBRERGEMBHRILE 2
BMEHEAEAR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a)

()

Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as lessee (Cont’d)

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
above).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Contingent liabilities

Present obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliably. Possible
obligations that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as a contingent
liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-T—

tETA=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the entity’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary item.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve as a
separate component of equity. Such exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

®)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

In addition, in relation to partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of

the Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(t) Related parties (Cont’d)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are the
members of the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint
venture of other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vij the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person is identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of the
parent of the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management has
made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account of their
estimated residual value. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation in
the year when the estimate is changed and the
future period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE-_T—+F

TTA=+—HLEFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires management to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2017 was HK$135,618,000 (2016:
HK$182,015,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are set out in note 14.

Fair value measurement and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management of the
Group works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments. Note 21 and 28(c)
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various
liabilities.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains impairment account for
trade receivables based on periodic evaluation
of the recoverability of the trade receivables.
The estimates are based on the ageing of the
trade receivables and the historical write-off
experience, net of recoveries. If the financial
condition of the debtors is to deteriorate,
additional impairment loss may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

5. REVENUE 5. W
(@  An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is (@) AEEFERAWREIFTOT
as follows:
2017 2016
—F—tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Management and consultancy fee SR NERE R 21,067 30,621
Media service income HEERBEA 983 -
22,050 30,621
(b) An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net ) AEEFAEMKZREA(E
income/(loss) for the year is as follows: B)RFEHTOT -
2017 2016
—T—tFE —T—XF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Other income H A Ug A 29 5
Interest income B WA 15 20
Fair value changes on contingent FENSAREBAFEEZD
consideration payable 2,148 (7,336)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR 2z - 3,489
2,192 (3,822)
TEMNEEZER)ER AR ZE—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-T—

6.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

tETA=+—HILFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segment information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, directors of the Company, is the
type of services rendered by the Group’s operating
division for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

The Group is currently organised into two major
business divisions:

()  private investment fund management and
consultancy services (“Consultancy Services”);
and

(i) traditional media and internet media content
production management services and media
content design services (“Media Services”).

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment
sales in the year.

Segment results represent the profit/loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of corporate
income and expense, central administration cost,
directors’ salaries, share of results of associates,
certain interest income, fair value changes on
contingent consideration payable, gain on disposal of
a subsidiary, finance costs and income tax expense.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets other than interests in associates,
available-for-sale investments, amount due from an
investee company and corporate assets.

Segment liabilities include current liabilities other
than contingent consideration payable, amounts due
to associates, obligation under finance leases, tax
payable and corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(a) Segment revenues and results
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SEEE(E)
(a) SFEBUIE RS

2017
—T—tE
Consultancy Media
Services Services Total
R R R RS AR 75 “st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET

Segments revenue 2 EpU AR 21,067 983 22,050
Segments results DEPELE (30,567) 591 (29,976)
Interest income FBMA 1
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBARFX (8,682)

Fair value changes on contingent [EfTsi AR (B
consideration payable NEEE 2,148
Share of profits of associates FE(L B & N B) 2 im A 12
Finance costs BB AR (1,224)
Income tax expense FTiERiRY (3,379)
Loss for the year REEEE (41,100)
TMEE () BRAR] —ELFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE-_T—+F

6.

+tZA=+—ALFE
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.
(a) Segment revenues and results (Cont’d)

SEEF(E)
(a) SEBWEREE(E)

2016
T -RF
Consultancy Media
Services Services Total
8 [ AR 75 ERE RS BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Segments revenue o b EE 30,621 = 30,621
Segments results DEEE 12,208 = 12,208
Interest income FBMA 2
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBARFX (8,537)
Fair value changes on contingent [EfT sl AR (B
consideration payable NEEEH (7,336)
Gain on disposal of HE—EM B A a2 WEs
a subsidiary 3,489
Share of losses of associates il AN o 5= (508)
Finance costs BEKA (1,039)
Income tax expense FT5RiF > (866)
Loss for the year REEERE (2,587)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

SEEE(E)
(b) SBAEREME

2017
—E—tF
Consultancy Media

Services Services Total

AR AR5 IRERTS st

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FET T TFET

Segments assets DEEE 179,902 8,402 188,304

Unallocated assets KOBLEE 1,945

Available-for-sale investments AHERE 769
Amount due from JEW — &R &

an investee company EIE UNGIE- €] 109

Interests in associates iNANCI P 5,018

Consolidated assets REEE 196,145

Segment liabilities DEBEE 14,059 3,697 17,756

Unallocated liabilities AOBEBEE 144,300

Tax payable FEfTRIIR 3,893

Amounts due to associates JET B2 /N B ZUE 980

Consolidated liabilities meE8aE 166,929

TMEE () BRAR] T —FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEPEE(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) (b) HBEEREREE)
2016
ZT-RF
Consultancy Media
Services Services Total
T AR EEE RIS fet

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET AT

Segments assets DEEE 222,231 = 222,231
Unallocated assets AOBREE 3,463
Interests in associates NN 4,996
Consolidated assets HEEE 230,690
Segment liabilities DEEE 12,623 5 12,623
Unallocated liabilities N =R 145,522
Tax payable ANEAE! 588
Amounts due to associates JEfTHSE &N B A 913
Consolidated liabilities mEBE 159,546

102 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017



6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(c)

Other segment information

SEEE(E)
(c) HAbsHEpEs

2017
—T—tHF

Consultancy Media

services services

FER AR TS 1R BE AR TS

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FERT

Capital expenditure BEARRY 1,185 -
Depreciation of property, M - WERRE

plant and equipment ZIE 104 8

Impairment loss of goodwill HEREEE 48,737 -

Interest income FLEMA 14 -

2016
e hANES

Consultancy Media

services services

8 1 AR 75 RS ARTS

HK$’000 HK$’000

FATT FHET

Capital expenditure BEAXRRAR 4 -
Depreciation of property, YE - BB MRE

plant and equipment ZHTE 83 -

Impairment loss of goodwill HERESE 13,468 -

Interest income FEMKA 18 -

SNEE R BRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE-_T—+F

TTA=+—HLEFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(d)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by

SEBEE(E)
(d) HeIHEF

AEBZEBITBZURTERE

7 o

AEBZWHVES D 2 IR

geographical location is detailed below: WM
2017 2016
—FT—tF T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHET
PRC F 9,637 27,065
Hong Kong &5 12,413 3,556

The Group’s information about its non-current
assets (excluding financial instruments) by
geographical location is detailed below:

AEBZMWHEE D ZIFRBDE
E(TEEVBIA)FENT

2017 2016

—B—+tF —ZT—KF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FAET

PRC A 137,706 183,016
Hong Kong EE 3,003 3,356
140,709 186,372

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(e)

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding
periods individually contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group are as follows:

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

SEEFR(E)

(e)

fFRXEERZEH
PIEEEEA - REERIEF 2K
mUEAREBBYZEFEBI10%) 10
™

2017 2016
—B—tE -—T A&

Segment HK$’000 HK$’000
7EB FHET FET
Customer A Consultancy services 5,760 -
EPA 8 1 AR 755
Customer B Consultancy services 4,800 -
%FB A AR 75
Customer C Consultancy services 4,000 -
%FC A 1 AR 75
Customer D  Consultancy services 2,500 -
®FD A 1 AR 75
Customer E  Consultancy services - 12,000
BPFE [ AR 755
Customer F Consultancy services - 5,800
% PF AR AR 75
Customer G Consultancy services - 5,265
EFG B8 [ AR 75
Customer H Consultancy services - 4,000

BPH B PR 1%

TSN B (B BRAE] T paER 105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

7. FINANCE COSTS A& R A

2017 2016
—E—tE —T-H
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#&T FAET
Interest on other loan HEMEZF B 1,194 1,001
Interest on finance lease EEFHERN B 30 38
1,224 1,039

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION PPt miEstE

The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after

AEBZBBRATBR GG T &R

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

charging: BIFH :
2017 2016
—FT—tFE T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHERT FHET
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIRA(TBIEESHH)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries and other benefits —T& « #Ha MHAEF 2,321 2,059
— retirement benefits scheme —RIREFIFT B
contributions 192 164
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET 808 720
Depreciation of property, plant and YW BEMZEZITE
equipment 698 690
Operating lease rentals in respect of  tHREFZKLHALHAS
land and buildings 1,139 1,125
Legal and professional fees FEEERER 1,996 1,425
Impairment loss of goodwill BB ZREEE 48,737 13,468
Impairment loss of trade receivables % 5 W R ZUREE B - 1,790

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EERESFHMN
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) ESFM
The details of emoluments of each director are BEEZNEeFBOT

shown below:

Year ended 31 December 2017 BFE—F—+tF+—H=+—HI
£E
As directors As management
fEBES fEREREE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits

and other scheme

benefits contributions
Fees #i& EMR RKEF Total
Name of director ESnZ ik HitFlz BN 4t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET TET FET

Executive directors: HITES .

Xie Xuan HE 540 - - 540
Qiu Yue [ifo - - - -
Feng Ke e 504 - - 504
Independent non- BikpiTEs:

executive directors:

Wu Jixue AN 30 - - 30
Zheng Hongliang L:FAR 18 - - 18
Dr. Wang Vi T#EL 36 - - 36

1,128 - 1,128

TSN B (B BRAE] T paER 107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EERESHMZ)
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d) (a) EBFEN(2Z)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_F—NNF{+-A=+—HI
FE
As directors As management
ERESR ERERE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
Fees %¢ - 2R RIKEF Total
Name of director EENA ik H it Hls ATEIH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL TR THT THL
Executive directors: BITEE:
Xie Xuan e 540 - - 540
Xiao Jing (Note (i) B (P EE() 50 - - 50
Qiu Yue [oifii - - - -
Feng Ke BR 504 - - 504
Independent non- BUkRTES:
executive directors:
Wu Jixue R 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong (Note (i) 3Ri&4 (FfEE (i) 8 = = 8
Zheng Hongliang L:FAR 18 - - 18
Dr. Wang Yi (Note (iif)) F &1 £ (P ki) 30 - - 30
1,180 - - 1,180
Note (): Resigned on 13 May 2016 fiEE): R_F—RNFAAT=A#

Note (ii): Resigned on 29 February 2016

Note (iii):Appointed on 29 February 2016

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2016: Nil).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2017
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9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEREEFHME)
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) AEREHES
The five highest paid employees during the FER - ANESHEERBIEMRA
year included two (2016: two) directors whose (ZZF—XE : M) EE - LI
remuneration is set out in directors’ remuneration HINEX@QEFEEFHH 65 - H
in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the BN (CE—XNF DA IEES
remaining three (2016: three) non-director RBEZEHMESHT :
employees are as follows:
2017 2016
—FT—tFE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Salaries, allowances and <AL K E A A
other benefits 1,212 1,243
Retirement benefits scheme RREFET SR
contributions 18 18
1,230 1,261

Their emoluments fell within the following band:

BEZHMENFIATHRE :

2017 2016
—B—t& -7 7%

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£ % 1,000,000/ 7T

MWEE(ZER)BRAR “EFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX 10. Fi§

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement (a)
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents:

B
RESHESRABEERERZA
#Hs

2017 2016
—B—tF —ZT—KF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T FHET

Current tax — PRC Enterprise BIHAF IR — R B {3

Income Tax Frisit

Charge for the year REFEMX 44 866
Current tax — Hong Kong EVEATRIE — BB

Profits Tax MISH

Charge for the year AFEERE 3,335 =
Deferred tax EERTR = -
Income tax expense FriS a2 3,379 866

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year
(2016: Nil).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25%

on the estimated assessable profit for the year
(2016: 25%).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

10. FifaBi(4&)

Reconciliation between income tax expense (b) FiBHEXHESZSEAREMEE
and accounting loss per the consolidated SRR ERER R ES
statement of profit or loss and other BB 2 HERIOT :
comprehensive income at applicable tax
rates is as follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF —T-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss before taxation BRI AITES 1R (37,721) (1,721)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, IZFRIEE AR 2%
calculated at the rates applicable M EE 2 m AR X
to profit/loss in the jurisdictions MBI EEB:TE 2
concerned BEMIE (10,627) 260
Income not subject to tax BEBF 2 WA (781) (5,936)
Expenses not deductible for tax TEEM 2 A
purpose 14,787 6,725
Utilisation of tax losses previously not & A 5B AR FERR 2 Fi 18
recognised B8 - (491)
Under provision in prior year LRI FERET R - 308
Income tax expense for the year FRZBEHRAS 3,379 866
DMEEGER)BRAT ZE—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

11. DIVIDEND 1. 2
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EETESEMEBEE_ZE—+FE+=-A
dividends For the year ended 31 December 2017 =+t HLEFEREFARE(ZE
(2016: Nil). —NE ) o
12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. BiREsE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BEREXRESE
The calculations of the basic loss per share are FRRERER RS A TEIRET
based on the following data: e
2017 2016
—T—tF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Loss attributable to owners of ZN/NETE Y DN )
the Company &1 (40,872) (2,234)
2017 2016
—=E—tF —ET—RF
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—HB2

ordinary shares at 31 December TR N ER 1,761,825,563 1,761,825,563

(b) Diluted loss per share (b) EEEEFEE
Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per MR EEEERMERS THTZ
share detailed above because the only potential AmRES BEEHAABREEE
dilutive share is convertible bond to be issued A - A BRI v AR E E e
and it is anti-dilutive. BREXREEER -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE-ZT—+F

13. W%  BERRE

TTA=+—HLFE

Land and
Computer buildings
Leasehold Furniture and Motor outside
improvement and fixtures equipment vehicles Hong Kong Total
BERNZ
HENERE RHREE SRR RE THERET it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TR &R TR TEn TET
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 R=E-7F-5-A 459 200 376 281 - 3,906
Additions NE | - - - - 4
Exchange difference EiES (25) ?) () 7 = (103)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZR
and at 1 January 2017 =+-8k
“Z-+£-A-H 475 198 313 2,198 - 3,844
Additions hE - - - - 1,185 1,185
Acquisition of subsidiary YENELT - 168 2 = = 170
Exchange difference EREE 31 5 1 80 - 117
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tF12R
=t+-A 506 3n 376 2,878 1,185 5316
Accumulated depreciation ~ BitiEREERE
and impairment losses
At1 January 2016 R-5-7E-f-H 36 153 349 575 - 1,113
Charge for the year RERRR 88 11 2 569 s 690
Exchange diference ErizE @) - () 26) = (32)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-AE12A
at 1 January 2017 =+-8k
“E-tE-A-8 121 164 368 1,118 - 1,771
Charge for the year FERRY % 18 4 568 13 698
Exchange difference EiES 9 1 1 4 - 5
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+E+ZR
=1-8 225 183 313 1721 13 2,521
Net carrying amount RE%E
At at 31 December 2017 RZE-+E+2A
=t+-A 281 188 3 1,151 1,172 2,79
Atat 31 December 2016 RZE-7E+ZA
=t+-A 304 34 ) 1,680 - 2,073

At the end of the reporting period, the net
carrying amount of motor vehicle with finance
lease arrangement was HK$696,000 (2016:

HK$1,044,000).

RB|EHR TERERELHEN RS
SRR (E A696,0008 L ( —ZZF— /K 4F ¢

1,044,000 7T) °

SNEE R BRAT

T —FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

14. GOODWILL 14. B8
2017 2016
—T—tFE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TFAT
Cost BN
At 1 January w—H—H 198,681 198,681
Additional amount recognised from BFERNETHEBRESH
business combination occurring HERRREING B
during the year (Note 30) (Ff#7E30) 2,340 -
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 201,021 198,681
Accumulated impairment losses ZETREEE
At 1 January Rn—H—H 16,666 3,198
Impairment loss recognised in the year 4 X2 2R EE B 48,737 13,468
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 65,403 16,666
Net carrying amount AREFE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 135,618 182,015

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing

FEMRENADEEATENZRE

purposes to the following groups of cash-generating EEEEN -
unit:
2017 2016
—T—tFE T KF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TFAET
Private investment fund management FLAREESEERE
and consultancy services =l
(“Consultancy Services”) ([EEBRF ) 133,278 182,015
Traditional media and internet media  {E4T 152 & B B 4E 88~
content production management NABEE IR RIS &
services and media content design ERANA R RS
services (“Media Services”) (MEREERS ) 2,340 -
Consultancy Services ES g
The management appointed independent qualified EREZABUSEREEMEMIA

professional valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service E2EE:
Limited to determine the recoverable amount of this

group of cash-generating unit.

FRABERAREEANERZREE
A Bz AN EEEE o

The recoverable amount of this group of cash-
generating unit is determined based on a value in use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by directors of the
Company covering a five-year period, and a discount
rate of 17.96% per annum (2016: 19.41%).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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14,

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Cont’d)

The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 2.93% (2016:
2.89%) per annum growth rate which does not
exceed the long term average growth rate for the
market. Consequently, the cash-generating unit
has been reduced to its recoverable amount of
HK$133,278,000. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$48,737,000 has been recognised and included in
“administrative and operating expenses” in the profit
or loss. Any adverse change in the assumptions used
in the calculation of recoverable amount would result
in further impairment losses.

Media Services

The recoverable amount of this group of cash-
generating unit is determined by the directors of the
Company based on value in use calculation which
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

14. BHE(E)
ﬂiﬁﬁf‘ﬁz&éﬁfﬁ@m;&%@%iﬁ
+t¢2 93% (ZZF— /N : 2.89%)

R RTNBIBTISHN R TFIE
ﬁi CHEEABENERAMmMBEE R
B4 %8133,278,00058 7T Atk - A
[E51848,737,000/8 T E R A Kt A B
w2 [THRREEAY ] - stEakES
BT 2 R A E 52 8 g E
BIMNBEEIE ©

IR RS AR TS

AR REEEEM 2B ST
HARRBZEEREEREEET - ME
REESRARARESHEZMGEE
ZEREREBAFE - ZMBEERE

approved by the directors of the Company covering TEHME  BMIREAFF103%(ZF
a five-year period, and a discount rate of 10.3% per —REE) o
annum (2016: Nil).
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. REHE AT 2L
2017 2016
—FT—tFE —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Unlisted investments 3Eiﬁ?§>§
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 2,296 2,284
Amounts due from associates e AN 2,722 2,712
5,018 4,996
2017 2016
—B—tFE —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Amounts due to associates AN NG E O] 980 913
Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, non- JEUW Bt E AR FRIEAERE - 28
interest bearing and has no fixed repayment terms. B & iR SR o
Particulars of the associates are set out in Note 34 to M NBHEHR S A REN
the consolidated financial statements. 34 o
TMEE () BRAR] —ELFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 15.
Aggregate information of associates that is not

individually material:

REHE AT 2w (4F)
BRI TEARE ARNATER

2017 2016
=T—tFE —T—KF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Aggregate carrying amount of e MBHREFENTEXR
individually immaterial associates in e AT 2 REEARE
the consolidated financial statements 2,296 2,284
Aggregate amounts of these REEDGZBE QT
Group’s share of that associates 2 HEEE
Profit/(loss) for the year FAEF(E8) 12 (508)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2wl = -
Total comprehensive income/(10ss) 2 (BE) B 12 (508)
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. A ERE
2017 2016
=T—tFE —T—KF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FEEMRAEFH (R A) 769 -

The unlisted equity securities do not have quoted
market prices in an active market and other methods
of reasonably estimating fair value are clearly
unworkable as variability in the range of various

FELEMRAESEN R BTSN TS
HRE BEANSRBREEAFEGREZHE
FEREZIZY1LE  BRBEHEEZR
ARELAENE - AEMAEMAF A

reasonable fair value estimates is significant and Y E 2 A EREBAAIT o EEIIEAAR

the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be

reasonably assessed. They are therefore stated at
cost. The Group has no intention of disposing of these

investments.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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17.

18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN INVESTEE
COMPANY

Amount due from an investee company is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and has no fixed repayment
terms.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

7. RMHIREHRATIRIE

ERREHRARREARBEER 28
B EEE R o

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES . BSRHMEWARR
2017 2016
—B—tE —T—F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B S EWBRK 25,516 25,090
Impairment loss BEEE (2,433) (1,790)
23,083 23,300

Prepayments, deposits and other TERTHRIE - e Kk

receivables Hth fEUER FX 17,267 12,709
40,350 36,009

The credit terms granted by the Group to customers
are determined on a case-by-case basis with
reference to the size of service contracts, recurrent
services provided to the customers and their credit
history. The Group makes provision for trade
receivables based on specific review. Provision is
made against trade receivables after considering the
amount due, creditability of customers and other
qualitative factors.

The trade receivables amounting to HK23,083,000
in which HK$13,980,000 have been settled after the
year ended 31 December 2017.

AEEREPRHZERERDZER
BENEH  MREFEPHERKZIR
BREEZEBEELIZERIEREE °
AEBIZERE R E 5 YR FAEH
B AREERERIPEE  FF
EEREMEERTERYE S RIIRR
TR B -

25 EWERF £ 58 523,083,0008 T ¢
HA13,980,0008 tEREE T —+
F+-A=1+—HILFEREE-

SNEE R BRAT “EFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 18. BS R E b FEWRES: (&)

The movement in impairment loss is as follows: SEERB BT
2017 2016
—T—tFE —T—KRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 1,790 -
Impairment loss recognised in the year & NHER 2 F(EEE - 1,790
Acquisition of subsidiary Y BB Bt 8 A 7 643 =
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 2,433 1,790
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the REBPAREAREZEZ A RIER

Group at the end of the reporting period based on the

ERR G E B RERF 2 Rk o A an

invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is S e
as follows:

2017 2016
—B—tF —TAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 02 30K 13,140 23,300
31 to 60 days 31£60X 720 -
61 to 90 days 61E90K 180 -
91 to 180 days 91E180k 4,512 -
Over 180 days HBiE180K 4,531 =
Total trade receivables B HEWAR B 23,083 23,300

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

18. B RHMEWARR (&)

BEE R EEERRREE SRR
R Z BRI DA

2017 2016
—T—tE —Z—RX

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FET

Neither past due nor impaired 18 4 180 B sl Rl B 14,040 21,800
Less than 1 month past due B E DR —1E A 2,730 =
1 to 3 months past due #E—Z= =1 A 1,782 -
Over 3 months past due wEI=E AN E 4,531 1,500
9,043 1,500

23,083 23,300

Past due but not impaired

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The credit period of the Group’s trade receivables
ranges from 60 days to 90 days. For certain
customers with long-estimated relationship and good
past histories, a longer credit period may be granted.

No interest was charged on the trade receivables.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances. The management of the Group monitors
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and considers adequate impairment loss has been
recognised for irrecoverable amount, if necessary.

Impairment loss has been provided because
the customers were in default or delinquency of
payments.

Note:included in other receivables, a balance of
HK$12,008,000 is managed receivable. The investors
entrusted the Company’s subsidiaries to manage
other receivables (“managed receivables”) and other
payables (“managed payables”)

HH B s R E

BB 1 ARRE 2 FEU AR TR R B AR £R
BRFROTECHBEZETELIEP
HERNBELR  ARAEERAR/EANE
EEEMBEAREY  AZFHEBIDE
BRAIZERE - WBANZFEHRIE
L E R o

TEBEHRERBERRZEERN TR
60ZFE90H - HETEMMEFTEABERR
BERPRS s EFPME ERIEEH
L o

ZEEHRWERTITEE - AEEH
BERRSERTAEREAR - A&E
ZEREBEREEMERNEZER 2 AT
EE£RE  TR/DEREERE 2 25
EREHREBR(NFE)

ERBEBEELERE  DRTFPEY
SR AFFRIA ©

FI5E : E fib FE UK BR 3K+ B $E 12,008,000 7
TR EEEWERRE - REEZ
FEARRE B QRS IR E AW ERR
(IZEREUWARIR]) & E fh 8 AR 3K
([FEREMERR]) -

SNEE R BRAT R FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE-_T—+F

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

TTA=+—HLEFE

19. & RINSZEEY

2017 2016

—T—tFE —T—KF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHT

Cash and bank balances We MIRITER 11,486 5,597

Bank balances comprise deposits with bank held by
the Group with an original maturity of three months or

less.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

RITEHRBRAAKRESEMRIBA
B=EAEREMZIBITER -

20. ES R HMAEFFBRRR

2017 2016

—FT—tFE —ZT—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Trade payables B 5 W AR 878 -
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R EME IR 132,405 21,138
133,283 21,138

Included in “Accruals and other payables” of
HK$132,405,000, an amount of HK$106,141,000 is
related to the convertible bonds to be issued.

The exercise period is 2 years from the date of issue of

the convertible bonds.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Rt ATERERAREMEMER]Z
182,405,000/ 7L+ + &% 106,141,000
BITARKTETZARRES -

AMBREFERITAREZITER AW
& o

AEBRHERREZRNER 2K
BT

2017 2016

—B—tF —T—KRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT AT

90 to 180 days 90E 180k 408 -
Over 180 days HBiE180K 470 -
Total trade payables B O RNIRR R 878 -

Note: As mentioned in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, included in other payables, a balance of

HK$12,008,000 is managed payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

21. FEASANKE

2017 2016

—T—tFE —T—XF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

Fi#ET FHT

Convertible bonds AT PR (E 5 - 108,289

Contingent consideration payable was arising from
business combination in 2014. Details of which are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 May
2014, 8 September 2014 and 5 December 2014.

Convertible bonds of contingent consideration
payable to be issued are based on the percentage
of profit after tax of the acquired subsidiaries in
each of the years 2015 and 2016 compared to
HK$25,500,000 respectively, therefore the contingent
consideration payable is classified as a financial
liability, measured at fair value through profit or loss
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” issued by HKICPA.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable is recognised in
profit or loss of the Group.

On 31 May 2017, the directors of the Company
determined the nominal value of convertible bonds
to be issued based on the actual profits of the
acquired subsidiaries for the years of 2015 and 2016.
Accordingly, the fair value of contingent consideration
payable of HK$106,141,000 was derecognised on 31
May 2017 and classified as other payables included in
accruals and other payables as the convertible bonds
have not yet been issued at 31 December 2017. The
fair value change of HK$2,148,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2017 was recognised in profit or
loss of the Group.

The fair value of the contingent consideration payable
as at 31 May 2017 is determined by independent
qualified professional valuers, Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited using Binominal model.

ENHARERE T —HFZ2EHKE
Bf - FBERARARBEH/A-T—NF
EAZ+REB - ZE—OFAANBR
—E-MOFEt-_ARBAZRE -

BT ETZAIRERES ZENIARE
ERBEAMUBHNBARRZZE—RF
&:%—ﬁi%iZ@ﬁ%%ﬂm%
25,500,000 T2 B LD RIFTE - &
%Hﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%MEL HiZE
BRI AGEM BB ERAFI9
RIMBEIE : BREFEIHBANAR
FEFAEZE mﬁtﬁ;'ﬁrﬁiﬁ
RENEZEHNAEEBRER

R_ZE—tFRA=+—RH ' KRAFE
ERBERN-ZZ—RHERZZE—ARFHAK
BWEBARCERRNEE S TET
ZABMRELSNEEE - BRRZE

—tFE+_A=+—8 ' ZEUBERE
HFRRET  WENIAREZAT
f5106,141,0008 TR —F—+F H A
=t+t—H®RI®ER  BEoBAHMER
BRFK - GTATEIRER R HEMERER -
@ —E—+HFE+A=+—HIEFE
2B BN F{E2,148,000/8 TR AN EH
ZEERER o

RZTE—tFRA=+—HZEMNHA
REZAFEHRBLAERBEGEM
NHAEZEAERARRAZEXEE
RAVEE °

SNEE R BRAT R FFR
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HE-_T—+F+-A=+—HLEFE

22. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22. (EHESE
A motor vehicle of the Group was under finance lease —WAEFRSERBEMERENKS
at the end of the reporting period. The interest rate is HARAM - IRy EABEFE25%(—
fixed at 2.5% per annum (2016: 2.5%). F—NE :25%) o

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

=iE#EE REHEZIRE
2017 2016 2017 2016
“FT—+tFE —TF ZF—tFE T F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT FAT F#T FET
Amounts payable under RERENE
finance leases: FERTFRIE ¢
Within one year —FR 330 330 300 300
After one year but — &
within two years BRMFA 330 330 300 300
After two years but within W%
five years BRAFA 248 578 225 525
Less: Future finance B RRBEER
charges 83 113
Present value of lease MHEETHE
obligations 825 1,125
Less: Amount due for o AR—EREE
settlement within one ZHEG RRE
year (shown under afE)
current liabilities) 300 300
Amount due after one year ~ —F /& FI|H3 Y I8 525 825

122 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2017
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mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. g=&
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE &8
HK$'000
FAEL
Authorised (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each):  %ERA(BREE0.10BT 2 TRK) :
Balance at 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R=ZE—~F—A—H-
at 1 January 2017 and at 31 December 2017  —E—X"E+-A=1+—-H -
RZE—t$-A-8AK
RIZB—+E+ZA=+—Bz&H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid (Ordinary shares of BETRHRRA(BRAB.10BTL
HK$0.10 each) LER)
Balance at 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R=Z—~F—F—H "
at 1 January 2017 and at 31 December 2017  —E—RFE+-A=+—-H "
RIZ—+FE-A-BR
RZE—+F+-A=+—Hz&H 1,761,825,563 176,183
TEMNEEZER)ER AR ZE—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

24. RESERVES 24. k&
Share Capital Translation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
Riria® B4 Enfif ZithiR Ch)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEL TEL T T Thn
At 1 January 2016 R-T-A5-F-B 304371 26,020 8751) 1413804 87,164)
Loss for the year KEEEER = = = (2,23 2,234
Exchange difference arising on BERNRBEE,
translation of foreign operations EiEE - - (327) - (327)
Reclassification adjustments relating to foreign  BEEME HEGHER L
operation disposed of during the year ENABAE - - 356 - 356
Total comprenensive loss for the year AEEREERES - - 29 (2,234) (2,209)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-~E+ZA=T-BR
at 1 January 2017 “E-+E-f-f 304,371 26,020 (3.722) (416,038) (89,369)
Loss for the year KERER - - - (40872 (0872
Exchange difference arising on BEENRBEEL
translation of foreign operations ELZE - - (891) - (891)
Total comprehensive loss for he year AEREREERLR - - (691) (40872) (41,763
Acquisition of additional inferests in subsiciaries WM B2 7l 2 E5MERS - - - (15,834) (15,834)
At 31 December 2017 R-F-tE+-R=+-8 304,371 26,020 (4,613) (472,744) (146,966)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus are distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus if:

() it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would be
thereby less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital account.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017
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24.

25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (Cont’d)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries
acquired through an exchange of shares as at the date
of the group reorganisation and the waive of loans by
a related party on 1 February 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3(s).

SHARE OPTIONS
The Company does not currently have any employee
share option scheme in effect.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Balances and transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note. In addition to those
disclosed in other notes to consolidated financial
statements, details of transactions between the Group
and other related parties are as follows:

(@@ Amount due to a director, Xie Xuan, of
approximately HK$3,404,000 (2016:
HK$4,173,000) is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and is not due for repayment within the
next twelve months.

(b)  Amount due to substantial shareholder, Asian
Dynamics International Limited, of approximately
HK$24,544,000 (2016: HK$23,350,000) is
unsecured, interest bearing at the annual rate of
5% and is not due for repayment within the next
twelve months.

Interest paid and payable to the substantial
shareholder for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,194,000 (2016:
HK$1,001,000).

24,

25.

26.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

(&)

AEBZ ARREESARERTE
AR AERRNEREMAY B EBRN
AR M A R 2 IS R B 1
B ARBEAIR -TTOF-A—
AREERZEHE -

EXFEHEEEMARREBINEG 2B
BHRAAEEZERZ5 - L AREN
() FES 2 R BRI IE ©

RERRIE
ARrBRAIYEBR B TREARES

& -

EXFAEANLRXS
AABEEMBAR(RARRZEE
AD)ZEBERSGERFEARKRAERK T
AMISE - BERRAM AR - B4R
BUBHREMMESEREEN - &
SEEEMBAEALZRSFBNT ¢

@ ENEEZTHBZREDNA
3,404,000 T (=& — N F :
4,173,000/ L) I EERIT - £ 8
N BERARKA2{E B REE -

(o) JE {F £ Z & E Asian Dynamics
International Limited 3% I8 %9 &
24,544,000 8 T ( ZF — R F -
23,350,000/ 7T ) Ty ~ B F
E5%st B RBERRKI2EAR

g -

FA - BENEEREERRZFE
49/41,194,000/8 (= F — /" ¢
1,001,000/ 7T) °

SNEE R BRAT R FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

26. EXFEANLTRS(E)

(c) The remuneration of directors and other ) HEFREMFZEEEXENTF
members of key management during the year is ANZEHEMIOT :
as follows:
2017 2016
—T—tFE —T—KF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FETT
Short-term benefits EHAE R 1,580 1,599
1,580 1,599

The remuneration of directors and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

27. COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

REERTETBRABZHMIIMH
FHZEEREESTAZKERT

LBBRERE -

27. &iR
CRHERE
PSR4 BASK - AN S AR I R AT RSN AT
HEANBRSNZRIEREXELRE

cancellable operating leases as follows: wnr
2017 2016
—B—tFE —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Within one year —FR 1,167 868
After one year but within five years —FEEREERN 1,628 2,087
2,795 2,955

The Group’s operating leases are for terms of 1 to 5
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. IR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) BBEIEBEZEH
2017 2016
—B—tF —ZT—XF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
Financial assets MBEE
Available-for-sale investments AIHHERE 769 =
Loans and receivables Bk EWFRIE
Amount due from K —EIREH R A RIFIA
an investee company 109 =
Amounts due from associates J‘éuﬁz%’p%@ I8 2,722 2,712
Trade and other receivables %&ﬁ{mf’?ﬂ& RN 39,166 35,080
Cash and bank balances fﬁi&fﬁﬂ =33 11,486 5,597
54,252 43,389
Financial liabilities MBEaRE
At amortised cost 478 Fs) DN
Trade and other payables %ﬁ%&ﬁ@fﬁﬁﬁfﬂ 133,283 21,138
Amounts due to associates A NCIE O] 980 913
Amount due to a director e — %%$,~ B 3,404 4,173
Amount due to substantial FE E B R FHIE
shareholder 24,544 23,350
Obligation under finance leases BMEHEERT 825 1,125
Fair value through profit or loss Az AFE
Contingent consideration payable — FEf S AK(E = 108,289
163,036 158,988
TMEE () BRAR] —ELFER
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e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management and policies
Details of the Group’s financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(b)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

(i)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is Hong
Kong dollar and the functional currencies
of the majority of the subsidiaries are Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi. The Group’s
transactions, trade receivables and trade
payables are mainly denominated in these
currencies.

Entities within the Group are exposed
to foreign exchange risk from future
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. However, as the
net foreign exchange exposure is not
significant, the Group does not actively
hedge this foreign exchange exposure
and no foreign currency risk sensitivity is
disclosed.

Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

The Group periodically reviews monetary
assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than the functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risks

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to fixed rate borrowings
from substantial shareholder (see Note 26)
and obligations under finance leases (see
Note 22). The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk relates primarily to bank balances
(see Note 19). The management considers
the Group’s exposure of the bank balances
to interest rate risk is not significant as they
have a short maturity period.

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties, is the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables,
the management has strengthened the
credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

28. MBIR(A)
(b) BABSEMEERBIR(E)

() AEERE ()
SRR ()
REBETERBEF AL
UINEBERBZEERA
18 - HEOREERF B R A
BERACEILH R A T R
HREBEAINERR

T3 J b
REEZ AFERERERE
EEXQIE%%ZIEN
EEEEHE(RiE2e) RE
BEHEREA(RMiE22) o &
SEzReRNERREE
BIRITHEHR(RMFE19) o B
BERR  BRIBITEHRZ
ZIEIRERERE - MASEEY
RITEER 2 FE R TR o

(i) CERBEEE
RZE—tF+_A="+—
H: WMXS8FRERTE
FEEMBEHRNEEER
BHBELAzEREERR
REEVBARREKTERZ
EHRRMBEE REME °

RTEEREES &ﬁﬁﬂﬁé
WERZEERR  EEE
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REBRETHREI AR E
B - s EREERE
FEHNEZEHREHRE R
Bz E e 5 - AR

Rz e BIEL RS2
MEBE - Rikms - B2
ERRAEEZEERRD
KA EL o

SNEE R BRAT R FFR

129



130

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)

(ii) Credit risk management (Cont’d)
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties
are reputable banks or banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international

credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period,
HK$5,760,000 (2016: 12,000,000) and
HK$16,177,000 (2016: HK$21,800,000) of
the total trade and other receivables was
due from the group’s largest customer and
the three largest customers respectively
within the management and consultation

business segment.

(iii) Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
Group relies on issuing of shares and
borrowings from related parties as a

significant sources of funding.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for their
financial liabilities which are based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. MBI A(EZ)
(b) Financial risk management and policies (b) HMEEMEERBK(EZ)
(Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d) (i) FHEELEGEE(E)
More than
Ondemand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total

Imonths  thaniyear  Morethan  cash flows carrying
BEXS  ZERNE 1 year KEH  amount
DRZER  BOR-F  BE-F REREYE  KE4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

2017 Z5-tF Tén Thn TiEn Tén Thn
Trade and other payables EIREMERES 27,142 106,141 - 133,283 133,283
Amounts due to associates EfBERARE 980 - - 980 90
Contingent consideration payable ENGARE - - - - -
Amount due to a director Ef-2E238 - - 3,404 3,404 3,404
Amount due to substantial shareholder BN TEREFE - - 24,544 24,544 24,544
Obligations under finance leases HEHEER 83 47 578 908 825

28,205 106,388 28,526 163,119 163,036

2016 BNk
Trade and other payables BAREMEMER 21138 = = 21138 21,138
Amounts due to associates ERBELTHE 913 - - 913 913
Contingent consideration payable ESARE - 124,338 - 124,338 108,289
Amount due to a director Eff-4EZ78 - - 4173 4173 4173
Amount due to substantial sharsholder ~ ENTEREZE - - 23,350 23,350 23,350
Obligations under finance leases BEHEER 83 U7 908 1,238 1125
22,134 124,585 28,431 175,150 158,988
In the opinion of the directors, the Group EERE  BBHFEWB®R
should have adequate resources to meet M EES(C) TE « & - K
its obligation in the forthcoming year SEBEREERNRERE
on the basis set out in Note 3(c) to the THEE -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Fair values

The directors of the Company have considered
that the carrying amounts of all financial
assets and liabilities, other than available-for-
sale investments described in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, approximate
their fair values at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016.

The following table sets out the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 using
the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

28. MBI RGE)

(c)

AFE

ARREERRAMAMKEERA
& (#R A B ISR FE 16 Pt AT i
HERERIN) 2 BREERER =
E—+HE+A=+—BRZ%E
—ANF+ZA=T—HZA¥EMR

+

Eo

TREIIEATEABZHBEIA
R-ZE—tHF+-_A=+—HEK
ZE-RETA=+—HZEKH
B HPEAEEYHREELSR
13RAEZ =B :

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—E: BEENTEB0HTER
markets for identical assets or ZHEREESBEZE
liabilities that the entity can access at BRTTISRE CREHAE) o
the measurement date;

Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices E_EB: BRE—"BZFRHRERB
included within Level 1 that are Gy BESBECHE
observable for the asset or liability, B B A B R AH
either directly or indirectly; and B8

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the FE: BEEREBZTUER
asset or liability. B A BUE o

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-E $5-E e 4t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

2017 —T+F

Recurring fair value measurement @ EH A F(EE 8

Liabilities afE

Contingent consideration payable B AR (E - - = =

2016 —TRF

Recurring fair value measurement @ E 1t A TEE

Liabilities afE

Contingent consideration payable  JERf sl AR E - 1 108,289 108,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c)

Fair values (Cont’d)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

The fair value of contingent consideration
payable as at 31 December 2016 has been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group, using Binominal model.
The significant unobservable input used in the
fair value measurement is expected volatility.

The movements during the year in the balance
of the Level 3 fair value measurement are as
follows:

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

28. MBI RGE)

(c)

AFE(H)
BE-T—t5+-A=+-AE%
—E-Af+=A=+—ALF

B F—EBRE_RBzZBELES
% E-BRE_EITEEARE

HEZE - ~AEBBRRERSH
KRB R FERE 2 FRE R R
LR

HEZZ—X"F+=ZA=+—8H2
ENFIAREZ A FEREBLEE
REEGEMIAFEDABRA
Al (A B R )RR B E
ERIEL 2 AEME - FER
ZERTABREARIBEREHK

I8

FARTFENBE=BREBKZE
SIELT

2017 2016

—FT—tFE T F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHET

1 January —ﬂ —H 108,289 100,953

Fair value changes NEEES (2,148) 7,336
Derecognised and classified BUBMER R BREM

as other payables FETBR K (106,141) -

At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H - 108,289

TEMNEEZER)ER AR ZE—FER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

PR ERAR BT EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-T—

29.

+tFE+ZA=+—BLEFEE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 29. EFXEH
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBETEBEHENEE - SWHAELSHEIR
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic M7 EHEERBEEHFAE - AT
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, T BRENER A TES 2R
the directors of the Company may adjust the YR FREZIRETIE - BEETFREE
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to REBETHERD - REBE_ZT—+HFERK
shareholders and issue of new shares. No changes —E—XE+-_A=+—BItEERX -
were made in the objectives, policies or processes BREBE -  MEXRIEFHIEIE -
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, AREEFNAEEE B RFRERERNE
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net o BNAEBEFEBRUNEERNINE &F
debt. Net debt includes trade and other payables, %ﬁ cBEBEFERIEE S L HMEREE
amounts due to associates, contingent consideration CERBEATIRIE - ENKAR
payable, amounts due to a director and shareholders, f“f FEfRT— %%%&Hﬁ%%ﬁlﬁ&@ﬁ%ﬁ
and obligations under finance leases less cash and EET RRELKESEZEY - BAE
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable HEARNBIER AR IEEIRERELRE
to the owners of the Company and non-controlling HoNPEBKREBEABRBEZRNMT :
interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:
2017 2016
—B—tE _—_T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FETT
Trade and other payables E%&Eﬁﬂﬁfﬁ BRK 133,283 21,138
Amounts due to associates AN NCIE O 980 913
Contingent consideration payable ﬁﬁﬁjz%{ﬂ?‘i - 108,289
Amount due to a director [ —REERIA 3,404 4,173
Amount due to substantial FET EER R IR
shareholder 24,544 23,350
Obligations under finance leases BEHRESFT 825 1,125
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o HERIBEEED (11,486) (5,597)
Net debt BaEF% 151,550 153,391
Equity attributable to: THIALEGRER
— owners of the Company SVAN/NEIE Z= DN 29,217 86,814
— non-controlling interests — IEE AR RE RS (1) (15,670)
Total equity R 29,216 71,144
Capital and net debt BEARNLEEFE 180,766 224,535
Gearing ratio BEEAMFBLX 83.84% 68.31%

134 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 8 November 2017, the Group entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
acquire 100% equity interest of BN E BT EE H
fR 2 7] at cash consideration of RMB500,000 from
independent third parties (the “Acquisition”). The
Acquisition was completed on 20 November 2017.

BINEEEREABR AT is a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC and its principal activity
is provision of traditional media and internet media
content production management services and
media content design services. The directors of the
Company consider that the Acquisition will diversify
the Group’s business management services to
penetrate into the traditional media and the rapidly
growing internet media industry which will broaden the
revenue sources of the Group.

The recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
Acquisition are as follows:

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

30. E£EE1H#

RZE—tF+—ANB ' AKBE
—ME - Bt - AEEREUARE
500,000t 2B E&RE - MBIE=F
KEENEEEESER AR Z100%
BRiE(TWEEE] - WBEFEENR-Z
—+E+—A-FtH=EK -

BEMEREESAERAT RN HEZM
Rz BRAT > MEXTERBERREMR
EREENERBRECAREUEEE
R RIRRARRT RS - ARBEF
RE - WBRFEESSZTILERARE 2
EBEERE  SUTRERKEBIUAR
BERE  BEBBREITE - ek
REBZWEHRIR

PR BB vl BRI B E R P AE 2 B BRI
BERAHZEHEIASEAT

HK$’000
FHET
Non-current assets FERHEE
Property, plant and equipment M BENEE 170
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H At AR R 3,918
Cash and cash equivalent ReERFCEEY 30
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR (5,867)
Net liabilities assumed Fr&iEz BEF5E (1,749)
TMEE () BRAR] T —FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

30. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)
Goodwill arising on Acquisition is calculated as follows:

30. ¥B8HE)

WEEEMELZBEFESTAWT :

HK$’000

FATT

Total consideration ER(E 591
Add: net liabilities assumed RNE  TRIECBETE 1,749
Carrying amount of goodwill ez REE 2,340

Goodwill arose on the Acquisition because the
business potential of the acquired subsidiary can
provide traditional media and internet media content
production management services and media content
design services in the PRC.

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for
tax purpose.

Net cash outflow on Acquisition

P P UK 3 TR s 2R P U R B /BB 8 R AT R
FEREERRENEBPEREZAR
SUFEERB RERATRARBZE
BED  BEBFRELRE -

BEREE BRI LR B RF0R -

WEEERFRERH

HK$’000

FHET

Consideration paid on cash EfRERE (591)
Add: cash and cash equivalent acquired ,,J\E P EEIR & &

2EEY 30

(561)

The Acquisition contributed revenue of HK$983,000 BEWBRASHE_ZT—+F+_A

and decreased net loss of HK$591,000 to the Group
from the date of acquisition to 31 December 2017. If
the Acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2017, the
revenue and loss of the Group would have increased
by HK$8,883,000 and increased by HK$1,489,000
respectively.

The gross contractual amounts of trade and other
receivables as at the date of Acquisition were
HK$3,918,000, which amounted to HK$633,000 are
not expected to be collected.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017

=+—H KWEFEAFAEEFRK
% 983,000/ T+ W< FEF %ﬁfﬁz i
591,000 7T » MU IEEBNR T —
F-—A—HB%4  AAKEEZH=
BB g 5 5L 8,883, ooo,am&i‘ﬂu
1,489,000/ 7T °

RUEEERE B MEHMEKE
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

31. HE—EMBAT

On 24 March 2016, the Group disposed of 100% R-ZTE—XRNE=ZF-FWAH > A&EH
equity interest in a subsidiary, Vega International i & — R I B 2 8] Vega International

Group Limited.

Group Limited Z 100% % # °

2016
A
HK$’000
FETT
Net liabilities disposed of: CHEBEFERE

Property, plant and equipment W BENEE 241
Available-for-sale investments aAHEERE 67,070
Trade and other receivables B 5 NEHMEIBER 129,711
Cash and cash equivalents He& MBS EEY 71
Trade and other payables B NEMEAERER (204,771)
Net liabilities BEERE (7,678)
Non-controlling interests AR A 3,834
Translation reserve realised upon disposal N EREIRE K FE 356
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HeE—KE ATz WS 3,489

Consideration received in cash NS MIREEEY
and cash equivalent UGB > (B 1
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of EEERSERESZEEY (71)
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE-—ENBARZIRES L F5E (70)
DMEEGER)BRAT ZE—FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

32. COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32. ASMEIRRE

POSITION
2017 2016
—B—tFE —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiExT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries B AR S 179,375 194,070
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E MR 106,943 650
Contingent consideration payable [Eftsl AR E - 108,289
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A RIFkIE 6,102 4,956
113,045 113,895
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEETFE (113,045) (113,895)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERADHEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 66,330 80,175
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Amount due to a director JE—REEHIE 69 69
Amount due to substantial JES E BRI
shareholder 24,563 23,369
24,632 23,438
NET ASSETS BEFH 41,698 56,737
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR
Share capital RN 176,183 176,183
Reserves (Note) & (I RE) (134,485) (119,446)
TOTAL EQUITY “RETS 41,698 56,737

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 29 March 2018.

Xie Xuan
Director

138 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

Qiu Yue
Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE T ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE_T—+tF+-A=+—HLEFE

32. COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32. ASBMBRRRE(E)

POSITION (Cont’d)
Note: ffsE -

Share  Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus losses Total

Rt i (E EQRR RitBRE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAET FAT FET

At 1 January 2016 RZE—~E—H—H 304,371 13,882 (425,519) (107,266)

Loss for the year AFEEE - - (12,180) (12,180)

At 31 December 2016 and R-ZE—x"E+-A=1—8

at 1 January 2017 R-E—+&-f—H 304,371 13,382 (437,699) (119,446)

Loss for the year AEEER - - (15,039) (15,039)

At 31 December 2017 R=F-tE+=-RA=+—-H 304,371 13,882 (452,738) (134,485)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the RABZEBBABARTNEDETERRZ

difference between the nominal value of the Ordinary AEEREEEAEHEARBROKEZ
shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of a WMEBAR s BEFELERE -

subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares as at the
date of the group reorganisation.

At the end of the reporting period, in the opinion of the RBERR  ARBEEFRE - ARARNE
directors of the Company, the Company did not have any ERATESIRTFARARARREZHEEHB(ZF—R
reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the F:E) o

Company (2016: Nil).

TSN B (B BRAE] —TEER 139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

33. SUBSIDIARIES 33. fiEBATE

(a) Particulars of the subsidiaries are as (a) MIBASTIFHENT :
follows:
Issued and )
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ mLer%st held by
registered  the ompany
Place of capital FLTREL
incorporation/ Form of BETR i
Name operation legal entity BERE/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
28 b EERY EAEENS ifEx  EE  RE IEER
Asian Information Resources  The British Virgin-~ International business US$200  100% - Investment holding
(BV) Limited* Islands company 200%T REER
ABRAEE ARBRAT
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$11,228,290 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Bk AREMAA 11,208 20087 RARR
EMASERAT!
Asian Information Resources  Hong Kong Limited liability HKS2 - 100%  Investment holding and
Finance Limited &5 EREMAT 0BT provision of treasure
functions to group
companies
RERRRASERARE
Bk
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$2 - 100%  Provision of administration
Investment Limited & BREMAT 2B services to group
~ companies
REBATRETHRH
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Marketing Limited &k EREAAT 10,0007t RERR
Biztech Company Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100,000 = 100%  Investment holding
BENERRAT (3 BRAEARA 1000007 Qote:  RERR
91%)
(Z%
-
£:91%)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

33. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 33. MBAT (&)
(@) Particulars of the subsidiaries are as (a) MIBASIFHENT : (&)
follows: (Cont’d)

Issued and .
fully paid Proportion of

share capital/ interest held by
registered  the Company

Place of capital KATHREL
incorporation/ Form of BETR fmithl
Name operation legal entity #ERE/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
£ Hlul GRS EAEENS ifEs  EE  FR IERR
Guangzhou Wavecorn The PRC Limited liability RMB10,500,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Communications and G EREAAH AR10,500,0007C RERR
Advertising Limited*
BNERBRESARAT
ACR Capital Management Samoa Limited liability US$1 - 100%  Provision of busingss
Limiteq” BED iGN %7 management and
consulting services in Asia
Pacific region
REARRHZHEER
BRRE
RIGERERAEE The PRC Limited liabilty US$2,000,000 - 100%  Provision of investment
BRAR G EREMAT 2,000,000% 7 management and
consulting services
RETEEE RERRT
Asian Capital Resources The British Virgin -~ Limited liability US$100 - 100% Inactive
(PTC) Limited" Islands EREFAT 100%7L Tmex
ZBRUES
MITEARREANLE ThePRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Inactive
hE EREAAT AR¥10,000,0007 1EE%
EMERRREERAR The PRC Limited liability RMB5,000 - 100% Provision of traditional
hE EREALT AR¥5,0007 media and interet media
content production
management services
and media content design
services
REESRERIBAGR
NAREETRRE R
MARa R
* Companies not audited by CHENG & CHENG e RENTWRAEESAENES
LIMITED. FrEMRAREZ °

THEEGER)ERAF —E L EER 141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—HILFE

33. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interests
The following table lists out the information relating to
the subsidiary of the Group which has material non-
controlling interests (NCI) as at 31 December 2016.
The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter-
company elimination.

33. MIBAT (&)

F2EMBAT(BREXERRESRS)
Z1E

TR EAREEHE_FT—RF+=
A=+—BHAEERIFEERER ZM
BARARAZER  TREJIZHHBE
M ERE A ARRSHEN 28 -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

2016
ZE—RF
Biztech Company Limited HK$’000
HERRARAT FHEIT
NCI percentage FERERB DL 9%
Current assets mMENEE 5,948
Non-current assets EMEBEE 1,682
Current liabilities mEaE (181,620)
Non-current liabilities EmBAERE -
Net liabilities BEHE (173,990)
Deficit attributable to owners of BERBZERAREEA
Biztech Company Limited FEAE 2 B AL (173,990)
Carrying amount of NCI FEVERR I 2 BRTEE 15,659
Revenue Wz 5
Loss for the year FAEHE (3,920)
Total comprehensive loss T EEEERE (2,8795)
Loss attributable to NCI VR S RS 2 1B (353)
Total comprehensive loss R EREGEE
attributable to NCI BB 2% (259)
Dividend paid to NCI XA F IR ER 2 RS S
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBEXRESRE 51
Cash flows from financing activities MERHEERESRE 1,125

Annual Report 2017



34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=1+—"HILEFE

ASSOCIATES 34. BtE AT
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BEATIZHBNT :
Place of Issued and  Proportion of interest
incorporation/ fully paid ~ held by the Company
operation Form of share capital FATRFLERLH Principal
Name g/ legal entity %7k  Directly Indirectly  activities
&1 G2hE ENERRR HERE E& Bl TEEH
Best Concept Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 40%  Property investment
BRHERERAR B BRRA 1087 NERE
ACR Singpoli Capital The British Limited liability US$100 = 50%  Inactive
Management Ltd. Virgin Islands
ABRAES  BRAA 100%7 BEHK
ACR Sihai Capital Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1,000,000 - 50% Inactive
Management Limited B BRAR 1,000,000%7C mEH
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35. MFHmRZHLE

These consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s
Board of Directors on 29 March 2018.

HEFEMBRRENR T /\F=A
TTNBEARRREESHELKET

o

SNEE R BRAT “EFER
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